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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors”) of Yan Tat
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Performance

Our Group’s turnover grew from HK$581.6 million in 2013 to
approximately HK$663.6 million in 2014, representing a growth
of approximately 14.1%. Gross profit was approximately
HK$140.4 million in 2014, representing an increase of
approximately 3.9% over 2013. Earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) was approximately
HK$73.4 million in 2014, representing an increase of
approximately 19.0% over 2013. Profit attributable to equity
holders of our Group was approximately HK$44.2 million in
2014, representing an increase of approximately 11.1% over
2013. Rise in EBITDA and net profits were primarily due to
increase in gross profit, increase in gain from disposal of Hong
Kong office, realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve upon
deregistration of a subsidiary, decrease in administrative
expenses, offset by, increase in selling and distribution expenses
and increase in listing expenses. If we exclude the one-time
expenses, our Group would have attained a growth in net profits
for the year.

Listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong

The year of 2014 was very meaningful for the development of
our Group. On 8 December 2014 (“Listing Date”), our Group
was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
consolidating the foundation for the Group’s future development.

I would like to once again thank all the professional parties and
our management team for their joint efforts in making the listing
of our Group a success.

Future Prospects

The development of the Group over the last three years was
limited by the full utilisation of its production capacity. As the
new factory with additional automated production equipment will
commence operation, the Group is well positioned to capitalise
on the opportunities arising from the growth of the market in the
future. The Group will continue to diversify into different markets
and sectors so as to maintain a broad base of quality customers,
which will assure a stable income stream for the Group. Despite
the uncertainty of global economy in 2015, | am confident of the
development of the Group in the long-run.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

Appreciation

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere gratitude to all fellow directors, management and our
staff for their unwavering dedication and contribution to our
Group’s development. | would also like to thank all of our
shareholders, for their trust and continuous support over a
challenging but rewarding 2014.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Chan Wing Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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Financial Highlights
MBREE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2014 2013 Change
—E-mF —T=F 2
Results HK$°000 HK$'000 (%)
E FET FHT (%)
Revenue Wz 663,566 581,557 141
Profit before tax [ A5 B v ) 50,857 42,822 18.8
Profit attributable to ordinary equity AATRERESFEA
holders of the Company before FE(RBRIEL B 1
extraordinary items' T8 B Alm Al 37,048 34,109 8.6
Profit attributable to ordinary equity AATRERESFEA
holders of the Company FE(E %A 44,209 39,769 111
Basic earnings per share GRERREN HK24.0 cents HK22.1 cents
(expressed in HK$ per share) (ABEHETIIR) AL il 8.6
Diluted earnings per share TREERN HK24.0 cents HK22.1 cents
(expressed in HK$ per share) (ABEHETIIR) AL il 8.6
Dividend per share TR 8 HK1.4 cents
Nil #& pll (100)
As at 31 December
W+=—A=+—~H
2014 2013 Change
—E-IOF —T—=F )
Financial Position HK$’000 HK$’'000 (%)
B AR R FET FAT (%)
Total assets BEAE 772,814 659,181 17.2
Net debts FED (17,844) 158,116 (111.3)
Shareholders’ equity B R 418,174 267,399 56.4
Net assets per share GREEFE
(expressed in HK$ per share) (AERATTIIR) 1.74 N/AT i A N/A T i F
Net debts to total assets FEREEEE
(excluding cash and bank balances) (MEERE R
RITHEER) (2.3%) 24.0% (109.6)
Net debts to shareholders’ equity SFERE R ER (4.3%) 59.1% (107.3)
1 Extraordinary items include gain from non-interest-bearing financial R BMIEE BEREFA M BRI W HERTEE

arrangement, gain on disposal of fixed assets, realisation of exchange
fluctuation reserve upon deregistration of a subsidiary and listing expenses.

2Was R RHENE AR EL RS FEE 2 BR R ETHX -
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Financial Summary

MEHE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—RHLEE

in HK$’000 2014 2013 2012 2011
FET —E-NFE ——ET2-=F —E£——-F —ET—F
RESULTS E

Revenue Uz 663,566 581,557 576,663 561,585

Profit before extraordinary items' BRIECEMIRR

and income tax KPS 5 A 7 43,696 37,565 33,899 22,203
Profit before income tax BT 1SEL AR 50,857 42,822 33,972 22,259
Income tax expenses FrSFiAx (6,649) (3,055) (3,794) (3,815)
Profit for the year & 58 F 44,208 39,767 30,178 18,444

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

in HK$’000 2014 2013 2012 2011
TETT —B-NE —T=F Z—T-——-F T——%F
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BEBE 772,814 659,181 579,781 527,572
Total liabilities BE®EE 354,640 391,356 361,147 340,161
Net assets BEFE 418,174 267,825 218,634 187,411
1 Extraordinary items include gain from non-interest-bearing financial ! FEEMIER OEREFTAMB Lz W HEEEEE

arrangement, gain on disposal of fixed assets, realisation of exchange ZWigs R IE B A R E R B R 2 B R E TR

fluctuation reserve upon deregistration of a subsidiary and listing expenses
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERBNWRD

Industry Overview

According to the analysis conducted by an independent third
party, China Research and Intelligence Co., Ltd (“CRI”), the
global printed circuit board (“PCB”) industry is closely correlated
with the global economy. In 2013, the global annual economic
growth rate was approximately 3.0%. In terms of sales value,
the global PCB market size increased from approximately
US$44.7 billion in 2009 to US$63.8 billion in 2013, representing
a CAGR of 9.3%. Along with the global economic forecast, it is
estimated that the sales value of the global PCB market will
increase to US$77.2 billion in 2018.

The global PCB market is primarily driven by a robust
development in the PCB downstream sectors, which in turn
drives the PCB market demand. The PCB downstream sectors,
including communication and consumer electronics products
sectors, have undergone technological advancement combined
with an influx of new generation of products.

In particular, since new products are introduced with
sophisticated and complex design and technologies in the
mentioned sectors, it is expected that the demand of PCBs will
increase and those made of special material would be the
mainstream product in the market as well.

For the PRC PCB market, the market size increased from
US$16.8 billion in 2009 to US$26.8 billion in 2013, representing
a CAGR of 12.4%. It is estimated that the sale value will increase
from US$26.8 billion in 2013 to US$35.9 billion in 2018,
representing a CAGR of 6%, which is higher than the growth of
the global market.

According to CRI, conventional double-sided, multi-layered PCB
and special material PCB, which are our three main products in
aggregate accounted for 84.8% of the PRC PCB market in
2013. From 2009 to 2013, sales value of these three kinds of
PCBs increased by CAGR of 6.5%, 10.5% and 18.3%,
respectively.
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268 BEILIEMNE — T — NFM359EFTT - EAFig

ERE6% REEMENEREXRAES -
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T—=%F" :Z:*EEDEIJ?EE%WE@%%WEWEQ%E
EEHRIA6.5%  10.5% % 18.3% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFN WD

Moreover, in 2013, our main customer groups: i.e.
communication, consumer electronics and automobile were the
major downstream sectors for PCBs in the PRC, in aggregate
accounted for nearly 70% of the PRC PCB market. Looking
ahead, the electronic information industry is an important
strategic pillar industry in the PRC. As a basic product of the
electronic information industry, especially the multi-layered PCB
which is listed among key products to develop in the PRC’s
Twelfth Five-Year Plan, PCBs are supported by governmental
policies. The PRC Government and the local governments issue
policies to support the development of the PCB industry. The
policies include governmental subsidies and preferential taxes.

On the other hand, the PRC economy developed rapidly with a
global leading growth rate especially after its entry into the World
Trade Organisation. Economic growth and increasing household
income stimulate consumption of electronic products which
drives the PRC demand of PCBs.

Last but not least, communications, consumer electronics and
computer sectors remain the driving force of the PRC PCB
market. In the future, smartphones, tablet PCs, cloud technology
and medical electronic products may become the focus to
promote the development of the PRC and global PCB market.
For instance, there were 0.4 million 4G base stations under
construction in the PRC in 2014, which would stimulate demand
for PCBs and bring opportunity to PCB manufacturers.

Business Review

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 8 December 2014. The Group is an
original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) provider of PCBs,
principally engaged in the production of quality PCBs, which
meet the industry standards such as IPC Standards, as well as
the customers’ requirement. The Company has received net
proceeds of approximately HK$45.0 million. From the date of
listing up to the date of this annual report, HK$9.4 million of the
proceeds had been used by the Group.

During the year, our responsive production solutions increase
very much of our competitiveness. Our diversified product mix
allows the Company to be responsive to the changes in demand
from certain sectors and adjust our production output
accordingly.

We target the market demand for conventional PCBs with a
well-developed capacity to produce multi-layered and special
material PCBs, which require advanced technologies and
specialised expertise.
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HFEK - REREEREEHAIEKS -

XK EEE
AARIBRGORINR = —NF+ AN\ BEBRATE
R T o ANEE AR ERERRZERE ([OEM]) 4
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REAFRAY AEECHAMEHREBTNILIES
BT o
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DITENFREL - BUHHRAIOED

BPHEERORERROTEFRRER  AER
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BE O T B ST R N R E B PT R A o

REEEERAERAT #2014 9



Management Discussion and Analysis

EERBNWRD

We have developed production solutions responsive to
production needs of a wide range of PCBs with various
specifications.

We have an established sales coverage in the PRC and
international markets. Our sales efforts allow us to capture
market opportunities and reach a large base of existing and
potential customers. We have maintained a stable business
relationship with our major customers for an average of more
than six years. We had 176 active customers for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Furthermore, we have been foreseeing an increasing trend in our
customers’ demand for PCBs, which exceeds our existing
installed production capacity. A construction of new production
facilities had been commenced in 2012 and completed in 2014.
After renovation and machineries installation, the new production
lines will be used in 2015. This new production facility covers a
gross floor area of approximately 53,977 sg.m..

Consistently high quality of PCBs and emphasis on
environmental protection have established strong recognition in
customers, which can help to meet legal requirements and
customers’ expectations.

BMERREZELESREGREHRERZ MR
REROERIERROEEFE K

BPETPEMEEMSEEL —ARENEEREHR
c BPIRIHE TIEBN R FIMIEmIZAM - WA
ABMABMEEEF - PRI ZEFERRBERS
BE FTHBERF BE-_T-—NF+_A=+—
BIEFE  HMBE 176 2EREP °

AN BRMEBRREFPHERIERIRNERKE LB
B WEBERFIREMERR - FTMEREMER TR
PRIZE——FHEIN-_ZT—NFRT - KEER
WWMZER  FTEESER T —AF/MA - &ZHE
ERR AR EMBELN B 53,977 F K -

BH-ESEENHRNERRLEIRARNER - HBIZ
BMPEFEFPHHBARE  AMABEBERRER
BEFHE -

Financial Review B & B B
in HK$’000 2014 2013
FET —E-MmEF —EF—=
Turnover e 663,566 581,557
Gross Profit EH 140,439 135,139
Earnings before interest, taxes, FE - TIE - EREERAN

depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) ([EBITDAI) 73,413 61,670
Net Profit A 44,208 39,767

The Group’s turnover for the year of 2014 was approximately
HK$663.6 million, representing an increase of approximately
14.1% over the corresponding period of the last year. The
increase in the Group’s turnover was due to an increase in
purchase orders from each product application generally.

The Group’s gross profit for the year of 2014 was approximately
HK$140.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
3.9% over the corresponding period of the last year. Gross profit
margin decreased by approximately 2.0% to 21.2% from 23.2%,
due to increase in subcontracting arrangements which generally
offered lower gross profit margin to the Group that adversely
affected our overall gross profit margin.

AEBER-ZZT—MF 2 EEREANCIEEBTL &
EEREIEMNA14.1% o REE 2 LEFEEMAR
BEMERITEEBRETELINATE -

AEERZZT—NFZ2EMNN1404B8EB T BRE
FRAIEME3.9% c EFEH28.2% [P H2.0% %
21.2%  THRDBHETHE M E—RRAEEiE
HEEEFE  AMHAEEEBERNRERTHE
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g
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFN WD

The Group’s total operating expenses for the year of 2014 were
approximately HK$92.9 million, representing a slight decrease of
approximately 2.9% over the corresponding period of the last
year, due to exchange gain in 2014 as against exchange loss in
2013.

The Group’s EBITDA amounted to approximately HK$73.4
million for the year of 2014 as compared to approximately
HK$61.7 million for the corresponding period of the last year.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$44.2 million for the year of 2014
as compared to approximately HK$39.8 million for the
corresponding period of the last year.

Other income and gains

Our other income and gains increased by HK$23.3 million or
295%, to HK$31.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
from HK$7.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2013,
primarily resulting from the gain on disposal of Hong Kong
offices at the amount of HK$18.5 million in November 2014, and
the realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve upon
deregistration of a subsidiary of approximately HK$8.4 million.

Other expenses

Listing expenses for the amount of HK$19.8 million were
incurred during the year of 2014. As a result, the other expenses
increased from HK$0.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 to HK$22.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by HK$3.0
million, or 13.7%, to HK$24.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 from HK$21.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. The increase was primarily due to an increase
in sales commission to both sales personnel and customers and
transportation costs as a result of the increase in sales volume.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by HK$5.8 million, or
7.8%, to HK$68.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
from HK$73.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2013.
The decrease was primarily due to exchange gain in 2014 as
against exchange loss in 2013.

AEFER - ZE—NENKERTBENER2IGEH
T BEFERBEMRDH2.9%  THR -ZE—M4E
REIE R MR - T — = F RIS SE BB -

AREFEN T —NEHNEBTDAXN AT34E EB T
MmEFRBALGEI.7TEESBTT -

AEBR T —NFEHEARAEDIEE ARIGEF
Ka4288ETL MEFRBAIAL9.8EEB T °

Hau A R Wi

Hip WA R WHREBEE—_T—=F+-A=+—H1t
FEM7IOAEBTIEM233FEBTH295% @ EE;
ET-NE+ZA=Z+—HBLEFENII2BEET
FEHRZZ—NF+—AHEREMRBEME WS
185 BEB T+ NoT 8 — Mol i B 1 70 [ 345 Bh i 44
ZEBRNSABEETT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERBNWRD

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by HK$2.2 million, or 61.1%, to
HK$5.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 from
HK$3.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
reason for this was primarily due to an increase in imputed
interest on non-interest-bearing financial arrangement of
approximately HK$2.3 million.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$44.2 million compared to
approximately HK$39.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing an increase of approximately 11.1%. The
increase of profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was mainly due to the net effect of the increase in gross profit of
approximately HK$5.3 million, the increase in other expenses of
approximately HK$21.1 million which was mainly resulted from
the listing expenses of approximately HK$19.8 million, increase
in other gains of approximately HK$23.3 million which were
mainly resulted from gain on disposal of Hong Kong offices of
approximately HK$18.5 million, and the realisation of exchange
fluctuation reserve upon deregistration of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$8.4 million.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The net carrying amount as at 31 December 2014 was
HK$300.5 million, representing an increase of HK$18.0 million
from that of 2013. This was mainly due to: (i) depreciation of
approximately HK$16.8 million with respect to the Group’s
property, plant and equipment in the current period and (i) the
Group’s new construction in progress of approximately HK$36.8
million.

Trade and bill receivables

There was a decrease in trade and bills receivables as at 31
December 2014 of approximately HK$3.0 million as compared
to 31 December 2013, which was mainly due to the net effect of
the settlement from customers and new trade and bills
receivables provided during the year ended 31 December 2014.

B 90N
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Bank and other borrowings

The Group had bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2014 in the sum of HK$158.2 million, which were reduced by
HK$62.9 million from the sum of HK$221.1 million as at 31
December 2013. The main reason of deduction was the amount
due to shareholders was fully settled according to the
arrangement disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
26 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”) upon listing in 2014,
when there was a great amount of HK$87.1 million as at 31
December 2013. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging
instruments.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the period under the review, the Group had current
assets of approximately HK$445.9 million (2013: HK$350.3
million) which comprised cash and cash equivalents of
HK$172.3 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$61.1
million). As at 31 December 2014, the Group had non-current
liabilities of approximately HK$59.4 million (2013: HK$133.3
million), and its current liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$295.2 million (2013: HK$258.0 million), consisting mainly of
payables arising in the normal course of operation and bank
borrowings for financing of new production facilities.
Accordingly, the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to
current liabilities, was around 1.5 as at 31 December 2014
(2013: 1.4).

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings
over shareholders’ fund, was approximately 0.4 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: approximately 0.8).

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the period under review. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to
time.
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Foreign exchange exposure

As at 31 December 2014, we had bank balances and cash,
other payables and other borrowings which are denominated in
foreign currencies and consequently we have foreign exchange
risk exposure from translation of amount denominated in foreign
currencies as at the report date. During the year ended 31
December 2014, the Group did not engage in any derivatives
activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to
hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

Capital structure

The shares of the Company were listed on Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 8 December 2014. There has been no
change in the capital structure of the Company since that date.
The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and
capital reserves.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2014, capital commitments of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$78.2 million (2013: HK$38.1
million).

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014. No dividend has been
paid or declared by the Company since its incorporation.

The dividends paid by the Company’s subsidiaries to the
controlling shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2013
was HK$2.5 million.

Information on employees

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 1,027 employees
(2013: 1,075), including the executive Directors. Total staff costs
(including Directors’ emoluments) were approximately HK$94.5
million, as compared to approximately HK$88.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013. Remuneration is determined
with reference to market norms and individual employees’
performance, qualification and experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to
the Group’s performance as well as individual’s performance.
Other staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme in Hong Kong, and various welfare plans including
the provision of pension funds, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and other relevant insurance for
employees who are employed by our Group pursuant to the
PRC rules and regulations and the existing policy requirements
of the local PRC Government as well as share options.
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The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group’s salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.
The Group also operates a share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 18 November 2014 (“Share Option Scheme”)
where options to subscribe for shares may be granted to the
Directors and employees of the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 43 to 45 of this
annual report.

The Company did not grant any share option under the Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2014. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
on note 8 and note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Change of auditors
There was no change of our Company’s auditors in the
preceding three years.

Significant investments held

Except for available-for-sale investment during the year ended
31 December 2014, the Group did not hold any significant
investment in equity interest in any other company.

Future plans for material investments and

capital assets
Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments and capital assets.

Material acquisitions and disposals of

subsidiaries and affiliated companies

The Group disposed of the office premises and warehouse
located at Workshops 09, 10 and 14 on 8th Floor, Kwong Sang
Hong Centre, Nos 151-158 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong owned by Yan Tat Technology Limited
(“YT Technology”) and Yan Tat (HK) Industrial Limited (“YT
Industrial”) respectively to Yantek Electronics Company Limited
(“Yantek”) at a consideration of approximately HK$23.1 million
on 18 November 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, save as the above,
the Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries and affiliated companies, save as disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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Charges of assets
As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings and
bills payable are secured by its assets as below:

(i) the Group’s leasehold land and buildings and construction
in progress with an aggregate net carrying values of
HK$165.5 million (2013: HK$142.8 million).

(i) the Group’s pieces of leasehold land situated in Mainland
China which are classified as prepaid land lease payments
with the carrying amount of HK$6.3 million (2013: HK$6.8
million).

(i)  pledged deposits with banks amounting to HK$21.9
million (2013: HK$16.0 million).

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2014 (2013: HK$7.6 million).
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EENEAREEEDRE

Directors

Our Board is responsible and has general powers for the
management and conduct of the business. The following table
sets forth information regarding members of the Board as at the
date of this report:

E=E
EEgREEBNEEREE  THHERT SRR
B TREIINARERNEHESTHNENER

Name Appointment Date Age
HE ZEBH Fie
Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Chan Wing Yin 8 July 2014 65
PRECE St 4 —ZE-MFE+ANH

Mrs. Chan Yung 8 July 2014 65
RELZ L+ —ZE-MFE+ANH

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong 8 July 2014 36
BRE S e A4 —E-MFE+ANH

Mr. Chan Yan Wing 8 July 2014 35
BREK T4 —E-MFE+ANH

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming 18 November 2014 67
EERAEE —E-mE+—A+NR

Mr. Yeung Kam Ho 18 November 2014 51
HEETE —ZE-mE+—A+NR

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu 18 November 2014 47
I &% 438 £ —E-NF+—HA+N\B

Chairman, Executive Director & Chief

Executive Officer

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (FR4 8), aged 65, is our chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is the founder
of the Group and has participated in the management of the
Group since January 1992. Mr. Chan is the director of all our
subsidiaries. Mr. Chan is responsible for the corporate strategic
planning and overall business development of the Group. Mr.
Chan is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung, the father of Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong and Mr. Chan Yan Wing, all being the executive
Directors.

Before incorporation of YT Industrial in 1992, Mr. Chan was a
sole proprietorship conducting business under the name of Yan
Tat (HK) Industrial Co. from September 1989, which was
primarily engaged in the manufacturing of PCBs and which
enabled Mr. Chan to acquire relevant industry knowledge and
accumulate relevant experience. Mr. Chan has more than 25
years of experience in the PCB production and sales.
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Mr. Chan currently serves as vice chairman of the Fujian
Chamber of Commerce in Shenzhen (RYITHEEE ), the vice
chairman of The Employers’ Federation of Shenzhen (ZYIIT 1
¥ EEBA D) since September 2004 and currently as the
honorary president of the highest ranking members (= A5l €
B&E@E) since 2010. Mr. Chan is also currently the vice
chairman of China Printed Circuit Association (FF F EN&LE 2517
#12) (CPCA) since March 2010. Mr. Chan was recognised as

“Pioneer Worker” by CPCA in 2012.

Mr. Chan attended his secondary school education in Fujian
province, the PRC from 1962 to 1964.

Executive Directors

Mrs. Chan Yung (FR E), aged 65, is our executive Director and
vice president. She has participated in the management of the
Group since September 1996. Mrs. Chan is one of the directors
of four of our subsidiaries. Mrs. Chan is responsible for
overseeing the administration, purchasing and logistics of the
Group, corporate strategic planning and overall business
development of the Group. Mrs. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Chan
Wing Yin, the mother of Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and Mr. Chan Yan
Wing.

Mrs. Chan completed her secondary school education in Fujian
province, the PRC in June 1968.

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong (R Z.3), aged 36, is our executive
Director and vice president. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan
Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung, and the brother of Mr. Chan Yan
Wing. Mr. Chan is one of the directors of three of our
subsidiaries.

Mr. Chan joined our Group in April 2011 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing factory expansion, information
technology, human resources and building management of the
Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chan worked at Benoy
Limited (a private architectural firm) from June 2006 to March
2011 with his last position as a senior graphic designer where
he was responsible for coordinating project construction and
installation and architectural design.
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Mr. Chan obtained a higher diploma in graphic design in Hong
Kong Technical Colleges (currently known as Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education) in Hong Kong in September
1999. Mr. Chan then graduated from London College of Printing
(currently known as London College of Communication) in the
United Kingdom in May 2002 and received a bachelor’s degree
of arts in Graphic and Media Design and was awarded a
professional development award in Print Production (Print
Packaging and Buying) in August 2002. He also obtained a
master’s degree in Interactive Digital Media at The University of
Sussex in the United Kingdom in November 2004. Mr. Chan has
been a member of the Youth Committee of Hong Kong Printed
Circuit Association since January 2013.

Mr. Chan Yan Wing (B2 K), aged 35, is our executive
Director and vice president. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan
Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung, and the brother of Mr. Chan Yan
Kwong. Mr. Chan is one of the directors of two of our
subsidiaries.

Mr. Chan has approximately 11 years of experience in the PCB
industry. Mr. Chan joined our Group in July 2003 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing the sales and marketing of the Group.

Mr. Chan graduated from University of London in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of science in Management in
August 2002. Mr. Chan has been a member of the Youth
Committee of Hong Kong Printed Circuit Association since
January 2013 and the vice chairman of the Fujian Chamber of
Commerce in Shenzhen (F3IITT @R E) since January 2012.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming (£ % BH), aged 67, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2014. Mr.
Chung has over 30 years of experience in manufacturing of
motor cars, toys, electronics and communications. Mr. Chung
works for L.K. Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 558)
since February 2001 (for the period from October 2006 to March
2014, Mr. Chung served as the executive director) with his
current position as a consultant, where he was responsible for
the strategic planning, the finance and investment. From July
1988 to January 2001, Mr. Chung worked for Kader Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 180) (a toy manufacturer) with his
last position as an executive director, where he was responsible
for overseeing all the operation of the group. From May 1986 to
June 1988, he worked as a financial controller for Wong’s
Electronics Co., Ltd., a company which is principally engaged in
the manufacturing of high-end electronics products, where he
was primarily responsible for accounting and treasury. Between
April 1984 and May 1986, Mr. Chung worked as a financial
controller in WEBCOR Telecommunication Ltd. (a telephone
manufacturer) where he was primarily responsible for accounting
and the overall management of the group. From July 1982 to
March 1984, Mr. Chung served as a chief accountant in
Swedish Motors Ltd. (a sales agent of automobile) where he had
the responsibility for all financial and economic control functions
in the company.

Mr. Chung obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration in the University of East Asia (currently known as
University of Macau) in the Macau Special Administrative Region
in May 1989. He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.
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Mr. Yeung Kam Ho (#588%), aged 51, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2014. In
addition, Mr. Yeung worked for OUB (HK) Securities Limited (a
stock broker) since June 1997 as the sales director, and he
currently works as associate director in UOB Kay Hian (Hong
Kong) Limited (which merged with OUB (HK) Securities Limited
in 2002) where he is primarily responsible for managing equity
brokerage services.

Mr. Yeung studied various subjects including accounting and
financial management for four years from 1984 to 1987 at Azusa
Pacific University in the United States.

From January 1993 to May 2007, Mr. Yeung worked for Sun
Hung Kai Investment Limited. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Yeung
worked in Christfund Securities Limited (formerly known as Hang
Fung Securities Limited) with his last position as a manager.

Mr. Yeung has over 20 years of experience in securities industry,
the Company considers his expertise in securities industry and
his knowledge in the capital markets in Hong Kong would benefit
the development of the Company upon listing by providing
guidance on matters in relation to corporate finance and capital
markets.
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Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (E828#8), aged 47, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2014. Mr.
Yau has more than 22 years of working experience in the field of
finance and accounting including some with international
accounting firms. Mr. Yau has been a financial controller of
Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 310)
(“Prosperity Investment”) (principally engaged in investment and
other related assets) since September 2011, where he has been
responsible for accounting and finance. Prior to joining our
Group and Prosperity Investment, from July 2008 to July 2011,
Mr. Yau worked for Anxian Yuan China Holdings Limited
(formerly known as China Boon Holdings Limited, stock code:
922) (an operator of cemetery in the PRC) as the financial
controller and company secretary where he was responsible for
finance and company secretarial matters. From July 2006 to July
2008, Mr. Yau worked for Fufeng Group Limited (stock code:
546) (a food additive manufacturer) as the qualified accountant,
company secretary and authorised representative. From October
2005 to June 2006, Mr. Yau worked for Golden Eagle Retail
Group Limited (stock code: 3308) (an operator of department
store) as the qualified accountant, company secretary and
authorized representative. From March 2004 to October 2005,
Mr. Yau worked for Changchun Da Xing Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (a manufacturer of pharmaceutical products)
as the qualified accountant, company secretary and authorised
representative. From February 2003 to December 2003, Mr. Yau
worked as the qualified accountant and company secretary in
Natural Pharmatech (Jilin, the PRC) Co., Ltd (a manufacturer of
pharmaceutical products) where he was responsible for
accounting and company secretarial matters of Hong Kong.
Between August 2001 and November 2002, Mr. Yau worked as
a manager in Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited. From July 1998
to February 2000, Mr. Yau worked as an audit manager in
Moores Rowland, a certified public accountants’ firm. Form July
1997 to July 1998, Mr. Yau worked as an assistant manager in
KPMG Peat Marwick (a certified public accountants’ firm). From
March 1995 to May 1997, Mr. Yau worked for Moores Rowland
with his last position as an audit supervisor. From September
1994 to February 1995, Mr. Yau worked in Logic Office Supplies
Ltd., a company which is principally engaged in office furniture
manufacturing with his last position as an accountant. From
September 1992 to September 1994, Mr. Yau joined KPMG
Peat Marwick with his last position as a senior accountant. From
October 1987 to September 1989, Mr. Yau worked for KPMG
Peat Marwick with his last position as an accountant.

Mr. Yau graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in Hong Kong in October 1992 with a bachelor’s degree of arts
in Accountancy. Mr. Yau has been an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since April 1994
and March 2000 respectively.
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Senior Management
Our executive Directors and senior management are responsible
for the day-to-day management of our business. The following
table sets out certain information concerning our senior
management as at this report:

EREEE
HTEENSRERERERTREBERE - TRHT
RARSHHERSRERELETER

Name Age Positions within the Company

HE FiR RNEQXRZBN

Mr. Lai Hau Yin 47  Chief financial officer and company secretary
REBRE BN BEE R ARWME

Mr. Leung Siu Yat 50  Vice president

R BB

Mr. Ho David Pei Yen 59  Vice president

BIEREE Bl

Mr. Lai Hau Yin (£ B), aged 47, was appointed as our chief
financial officer in March 2014 and our company secretary in
August 2014 and is mainly responsible for overseeing the
financial planning, accounting and company secretarial affairs of
our Group. Mr. Lai has over 20 years of experience in the areas
of audit and accounting. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Lai
worked for Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 923), which is principally engaged in waste
recycling and waste solutions providers business, from May
2012 to September 2013 with his last position as an executive
director and chief financial officer, where he was primarily
responsible for the financial and accounting matters of the
group. From June 2008 to July 2010, Mr. Lai served as the
group financial controller and company secretary of Zhongsheng
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 881) (automobile
dealership business), where he was primarily responsible for the
financial reporting and company secretarial matters of the group.
From September 2002 to October 2007, he was the group
financial controller in L.K. Technology Holdings Limited (stock
code: 558), which is principally engaged in design and
manufacture of die casting machine where he was primarily
responsible for accounting and company secretarial matters of
the group. From February 2001 to June 2002, he was a project
controller of Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (stock code: 643) (a
garment manufacturer), where he was primarily responsible for
the accounting and financial planning of the company. From
March 1997 to January 2001, Mr. Lai worked for Kaiser Group
Holdings Limited (a leather garment manufacturer) with his last
position as the financial controller where he was mainly
responsible for the finance of the group both in Hong Kong and
the PRC. From March 1993 to March 1997, Mr. Lai worked for
Chiu and Poon (a certified public accountants’ firm) with his last
position as the audit supervisor where he was mainly responsible
for auditing.
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Mr. Lai is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since February 2009, a certified practise
accountant of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants since September 1996 and a certified tax adviser
of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since January 2014.

Mr. Lai obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business from Deakin
University of Australia in Australia in December 1992, a master’s
degree in Business Administration from West Coast Institute of
Management & Technology in Australia in May 2000 (long
distance learning course), and a master’s degree in Business
Administration from the European University of Ireland in Ireland
in December 2001 (long distance learning course).

Mr. Leung Siu Yat (E4*#), aged 50, first joined our Group as
a production manager and the vice president in November 2004
and is mainly responsible for supervising and management of
the PCB factory production of our Group. Mr. Leung has over
27 years of experience in the PCB industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Leung worked for Ellington (Guangdong) Electronics
Technology Company Limited (a PCB manufacturer) as a deputy
general manager of a manufacturing factory from August 2000
to September 2004. From January 1997 to July 2000, he
worked for Kalex Printed Circuit Board Ltd. (a PCB
manufacturer) with his last position as an assistant production
manager. From March 1986 to January 1997, Mr. Leung worked
for Kalex Circuit Board (Hong Kong) Ltd., a PCB manufacturer,
as a production superintendent. Mr. Leung was mainly
responsible for overseeing the factory operation and supervising
the production staff in these past positions. Mr. Leung
completed his secondary school education in Guangdong
province, the PRC in July 1981.

Mr. Ho David Pei Yen (E3Z %), aged 59, was appointed as
our vice president in January 2004 and is mainly responsible for
long-term departmental planning and overseeing the daily
operation of the sales, quality assurance and research &
development departments of our Group. Mr. Ho has over 19
years of experience in the PCB industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Ho worked for Enigma Interconnect Corp. (formerly
known as Circuit Graphics Ltd, a PCB manufacturer) in Canada
with his last position as president from 1993 to 2002, where he
was mainly responsible for implementing new technology in PCB
production and business development.

Mr. Ho obtained a diploma of technology in mechanical
technology from British Columbia Institute of Technology,
Canada in June 1980. Mr. Ho was accredited as an associate
member of the Society of Engineering Technologists of British
Columbia in Canada in June 1980.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Lai Hau Yin (£ E) has been the chief financial officer
and the company secretary of our Company since March 2014
and August 2014 respectively. His biographical details are set
out in the above section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile — Senior Management”.
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Corporate Governance Practices

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the
top priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is one of the areas that lead to the
success of the Company and in balancing the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board is
devoted to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
the Company had complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except code provision A.2.1
as more particularly described below.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be segregated and should not be performed by
the same individual. However, we do not have a separate
chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Chan Wing Yin
currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
considers that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Board will continue to review and consider
splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company at a time when it is appropriate and
suitable by taking into account the circumstances of the Group
as a whole.

Code of Conduct for Securities

Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries to all the
Directors, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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The Board of Directors

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, of which four
are executive Directors, and three are independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman)
Mrs. Chan Yung

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong

Mr. Chan Yan Wing

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming

Mr. Yeung Kam Ho

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
there was no change in the composition of the Board.

The biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages 17
to 25.
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Board Meetings

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of
the Company. Other Board meetings will be held when
necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active participation,
either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. From the Listing Date
and up to 31 December 2014, 2 Board meetings were held and
the attendance records of individual Directors are set out below:

ExeEa
EFeRBEFELRTHRAENERE  KOER—
FERIT R UEmARE 2 BRI REE BT
BRE -HBEESSHEABRFTERT FHESS
SHRMAHODEZTIPL2E  JURFEFERERE
MEFBEATR -ALTRAMEEE T -HF+=
A=+—R BE#72KEFggx @ANEF2H
JERCEREFINS

Directors’ Attendance
Board Meeting

Attended/Held
EEHERE
EEEETAH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman) PRECE Se i (/%) 2/2
Mrs. Chan Yung PREB Lt 2/2
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong BRE LA 2/2
Mr. Chan Yan Wing PR B oK ST A& 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFBTES
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming EERRRLAE 2/2
Mr. Yeung Kam Ho kbl 2/2
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu ER &8 5 A 2/2

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for
attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas
and other relevant information are provided to the Directors in
advance of Board meetings. All Directors are consulted to
include additional matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

General Meetings
From the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2014, no general
meeting was held.
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Responsibilities of the Board and
Management

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing
the Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities for the
adoption of long-term strategies and appointing and supervising
senior management to ensure that the operation of the Group is
conducted in accordance with the objective of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s
corporate governance policies which include: () to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) to review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) to review the Company’s disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees
which have been established by the Board to deal with different
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in
their respective written terms of reference as approved by the
Board, these Board committees are governed by the Company’s
articles of association as well as the Board’s policies and
practices (in so far as the same are not in conflict with the
provisions contained in the articles of association). With the new
composition of members of the nomination committee, the
remuneration committee and the audit committee, the
independent non-executive Directors will be able to effectively
devote their time to perform the duties required by the respective
Board committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management
of the Company under the leadership of the executive Directors.
Clear guidance has been made as to the matters that should be
reserved to the Board for its decision which include matters on,
inter alia, capital, finance and financial reporting, internal
controls, communication with shareholders, Board membership,
delegation of authority and corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out on
pages 53 to 144 were prepared on the basis set out in note 2.2
to the consolidated financial statements. Financial results of the
Group are announced in a timely manner in accordance with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements. The declaration of
reporting responsibility issued by the external auditors of the
Company on the Company’s financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 51 and 52.
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There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Continuous Professional Development
Immediately prior to the listing of the Company, all Directors
have been given relevant guideline materials and attended a
training regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a
Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the
Directors, duty of disclosure of interest and business of the
Group. Such induction materials and briefings will also be
provided to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their
appointment as Directors. Continuing briefings and professional
development to Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

All Directors have provided record of training attendance and the
Company will continue to arrange and/or fund the training in
accordance with the Code Provisions.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be segregated and should not be performed by
the same individual. However, we do not have a separate
chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Chan Wing Yin
currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within our Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for our Group. The Board
considers this structure will enable our Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority is adequately
ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals with a sufficient number
thereof being independent non-executive Directors.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company and each of the independent non-
executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company. Such term is for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, subject to re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting (“AGM”) one third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation.
However, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one third shall be
the name of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire in
each year will be those who have been longest in the office since
their last re-election or appointment but as between persons
who become or were last re-elected Directors on the same day
those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by the Company. Such retiring
Directors may, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders after their appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee pursuant to
a resolution of the Directors on 18 November 2014 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. Its
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on regular
basis; identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members; assess the independence of independent non-
Executive Directors; and make recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors. The nomination committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung
Kam Ho (Chairman), Mr. Chung Yuk Ming and Mr. Yau Wing Yiu
and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and
Mr. Chan Yan Wing.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report, no nomination committee meeting was held during this
period as the Company has not appointed new director.
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When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
nomination committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations required for the positions. All candidates must be
able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09
of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.

To enhance the quality of the performance of the Board and to
achieve diversity on the Board, the Board adopted on 18
November 2014 its board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”), pursuant to which (i) differences in the skills, regional
and industry experience, background, race, gender and other
qualities of Directors will be taken into account in determining
the optimum composition of the Board; and (ii) all Board
appointments will be based on merit while taking into account
diversity (including gender diversity). For the purpose of
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the following
measurable objectives were adopted:

(A)  at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(B) at least one of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications;

(C) atleast 70% of the members of the Board shall have more
than seven years of experience in the industry he/she is
specialised in; and

(D) atleast two of the members of the Board shall have China-
related work experience.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has fulfilled
the measurable objectives of the Board Diversity Policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 18 November 2014
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 and
Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of
the remuneration committee was adopted in compliance with
the Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of
the Group and ensure none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration. The emoluments of executive Directors are
determined based on the skills, knowledge, individual
performance as well as contributions, the scope of responsibility
and accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration of
the Company’s performance and prevailing market conditions.
The remuneration policy of independent non-executive Directors
is to ensure that the independent non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to
the Company’s affairs including their participation in respective
Board committees. The emoluments of independent non-
executive Directors are determined with reference to their skills,
experience, knowledge, duties and market trends. As at the
date of this annual report, the remuneration committee consists
of three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Chung
Yuk Ming (Chairman), Mr. Yeung Kam Ho and Mr. Yau Wing Yiu
and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and
Mr. Chan Yan Wing.

Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report, no remuneration committee meeting was held during this
period.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Director passed on 18 November 2014 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule
3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
audit committee was adopted in compliance with the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things,
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor, review the
financial statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting and overseas internal control procedures of the
Company. As at the date of this annual report, the audit
committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (Chairman), Mr. Yeung Kam
Ho and Mr. Chung Yuk Ming.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
no audit committee meetings were held during this period.
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During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report, the Board has not taken a different view from the audit
committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the Company engaged Ernst & Young as the
external auditors. Apart from providing audit services, Ernst &
Young also provided audit services in connection with the
Group’s listing. The fees in respect of audit, audit related and
non-audit services provided by Ernst & Young for the year ended
31 December 2014 approximately amounted to HK$1,280,000,
HK$4,600,000 and HK$33,000, respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of Ernst & Young are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 51 and 52.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lai Hau Yin being our company secretary is primarily
responsible for the company secretarial work of our Group. Mr.
Lai is also our company’s chief financial officer. The Company
confirms that Mr. Lai has for the year in 2014 attended no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system in order to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper
books and records for the provision of reliable financial
information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system for the year ended 31 December
2014 and will continue to assess the effectiveness of internal
controls by considering reviews performed by the audit
committee and executive management.

Shareholders’ Rights

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of the
Company are prepared in accordance with the articles of
association as follows:

(1) One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings, shall have the right, by written notice, to require
an EGM to be called by the Directors of the Company for
the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.
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(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

Address: Room 809-810, Kwong Sang Hong Centre,
151-153 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: ir@yantat.com

Attention: Mr. Lai Hau Yin

Registered office of the Company

Address: Room 809-810, Kwong Sang Hong Centre,
151-153 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Attention: Mr. Lai Hau Yin

(8)  The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

(4) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

For matters in relation to the Board, the shareholders can
contact the Company at the following:

By post to the Company’s headquarter in Hong Kong
By email to ir@yantat.com

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her
proposal (“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact information
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Board will be asked to
include the Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

(1)  Atleast 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2)  Atleast 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in
an EGM of the Company or an ordinary resolution of the
Company in an annual general meeting of the Company.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investing public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public
announcements. Extensive information about the Company’s
activities for the year ended 31 December 2014 has been
provided in this annual report. While the AGM provides a
valuable forum for direct communication between the Board and
its shareholders, the Company also maintains its website
(www.yantat.com) to provide an alternative communication
channel for the public and its shareholders. All corporate
communication and Company’s latest updates are available on
the Company’s website for public’s information.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
there has been no significant change in the Company’s

constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their first annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the
“Consolidated Financial Statements”) since the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 8 December 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Comparison Between Future Plans and
Prospects and Actual Business Progress
and Use of Proceeds

Comparison of Future Plans with the Actual

Business Progress

Since the Listing Date was on 8 December 2014, the Group has
not executed any business plan as set out in the Prospectus. As
at the date of this annual report, the Directors had no intention
to make any changes to the business plan.

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds from the listing were approximately HK$45.0
million. As the listing took place on 8 December 2014, the
amount of approximately HK$9.4 million raised from the public
offering were applied up to (and including) 31 December 2014.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 19 December 2014.

The future plans and prospects as stated in the Prospectus
were derived from the Group’s reasonable estimation of the
future market conditions based on the information available at
the time of preparing the Prospectus. As of the date of this
report, the Directors are not aware of material change to the
planned use of the proceeds from the plan as stated in the
Prospectus. The unused net proceeds have been placed as
bank deposits.

EEMARHREA —FT—NF+-ANBARRRNL
MREBMEZZMAR AR IR EWIARKN BN FE
HE o ERASEEE-_T-—MOF+-_A=+—HIt
FENREZEAVHRER ((REMBEER]) -

IEXK
ARFMEBEBRRERE - MARARTHER
AIEE EEHRMIINGS B RRMTI7A -

ARETERAREBERERER ZLBUK
FREFERR

ARGTERERELER 2 LR

MR EMAHA-—ZT-—NFE+-ANR  KEEHK
MITHRERMENEERE - RAFRAL
EETREEBEEREMSD

FEREARE

WS REFEN AE4S0EEE T - mR ETA
BeE-_Z—NF+-_AN\B BEE-ZFT—NWNF+=A
=+—H(BEZB)  BARBREESNMERELY
Q4BEBATEEDA - BEZEFRL2HAARAHA
—ZE-MFE+ A+ NBEZRE -

FRERZMBARKET BRI R DERARNEERRER
BERERRRBERAISNEMERET RN EM
AL - RAREBH  EFLTANBBRERM
AR RIEREREEERNERES) - XFY
RZFEFRFREFEFRRITER

REEEERAERAT #2014 37



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014
are set out in the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages
53 to 144.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The dividends paid by the Company’s subsidiaries to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
HK$2.5 million.

Four-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years is set out on page 7. This
summary does not form part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 57 of this annual report
and note 30 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

Distributable Reserves

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8 July
2014. As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s distributable
reserves, calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$41.7 million.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounted to HK$52,344 (2013: HK$14,615).
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers accounted for approximately 24.2% and
54.4% respectively of the Group’s total revenue for the year. The
purchases made by the Group from its largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 30.0% and
55.7% of the Group’s total purchases for the year, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors,
their close associates, nor any shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

Subsidiaries
The details of the major subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group’s total capital expenditure amounted
to approximately HK$49.0 million (2013: HK$81.4 million) which
was mainly used for acquisition of machineries and equipments.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 14 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at the balance sheet
date are set out in note 25 and note 26 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The details of the Group’s charges of
assets are set out on page 16.
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wing Yin
(Chairman)

Mrs. Chan Yung

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong

Mr. Chan Yan Wing

(appointed on 8 July 2014)

(appointed on 8 July 2014)
(appointed on 8 July 2014)
(appointed on 8 July 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming (appointed on 18 November 2014)
Mr. Yeung Kam Ho (appointed on 18 November 2014)
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (appointed on 18 November 2014)

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and shall continue thereafter
until terminated by, not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting
and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

No Director has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of
them are considered to be independent.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, one
third of the existing Directors shall retire from office, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed, there was no contract of significance to
which the Company or its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior

Management

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” on pages 17 to 25 of this annual
report.

Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in

Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report and Prospectus, there
was no contract of significance to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which any controlling shareholder had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Non-Competition Undertaking by

Controlling Shareholders

Each of the controlling shareholders has made an annual
declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-
competition undertaking.

Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of
the Prospectus.

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the controlling
shareholders have become effective from the Listing Date.

Non-Competition Undertaking by Executive

Directors

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has made an
annual declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms
of non-competition undertaking.

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the executive
Directors have become effective from the Listing Date.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the executive Directors of the Company have
complied with the non-competition undertaking and the non-
competition undertaking has been enforced by the Company in
accordance with its terms.
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New Business Opportunity

There was no New Opportunity (as defined in the Prospectus
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Non
Competition Undertakings”) referred by the controlling
shareholders to the Company as provided under the non-
competition undertaking.

Contracts with Controlling Shareholders

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Connected Transactions

The Company has entered into the following continuing
connected transactions (as defined under the Listing Rules)
during the year and up to the date of this annual report:

(1) On 30 May 2014, YT Industrial, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a lease agreement
(“Yantek Lease”) with Yantek, a connected person of the
Company within the meanings of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Yantek Lease, YT Industrial shall lease
from Yantek the premises situated at Flat E on 15th Floor
and Flat Roof immediately above of Tower 5 and Car
Parking Space No. 11 on Car Park B1, One Beacon Hill,
No. 1 Beacon Hill Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong with a
gross total floor area of approximately 1,473 square feet at
a monthly rental of HK$55,000 for a term of two years
commencing on 1 June 2014 and ending on 31 May 2016
as staff quarter for Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan
Yung.

(2)  On 18 November 2014, the Group disposed of the offices
premises and warehouse located at Workshops 09, 10
and 14 on 8th Floor, Kwong Sang Hong Centre, Nos.
151-153 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong Kowloon, Hong Kong
(“HK Headquarters”, owned by YT Technology and YT
Industrial (both are indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) respectively to Yantek, a connected person of
the Company within the meanings of the Listing Rules, at
a consideration of approximately HK$23.1 million. On the
same date, YT Technology entered into a lease agreement
“Headquarters Lease”) with Yantek. Pursuant to the
Headquarters Lease, YT Technology shall lease from
Yantek the HK Headquarters at a monthly rental of
HK$80,300 for a term of 2 years commencing on 25
November 2014 and ending on 24 November 2016 for the
Group’s use.
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Yantek is beneficially owned as to 34% by Mr. Chan Yan Wing,
33% by Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and 33% by Ms. Chan Yan Sam.
Mr. Chan Yan Wing and Mr. Chan Yan Kwong are the executive
Directors of the Company. Ms. Chan Yan Sam is the sister of
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and Mr. Chan Yan Wing and the daughter
of Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above are
fully exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement
requirements and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors of
the Company who have confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into: (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company; (b) either on normal commercial terms
or, if there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; (c) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of shareholders of
the Company as a whole; and (d) within the caps or the
aggregate transaction values set out in the Prospectus.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the year is disclosed in note 36 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved
for adoption pursuant to a written resolution of all of our
Shareholders passed on 18 November 2014 for the purpose to
provide our Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and or providing
benefits to eligible participants and for such other purposes as
the Board approve from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
may, at their absolute discretion, grant or invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes to take up options to
subscribe for shares: (a) any employee, supplier service provider,
customer, partner or joint-venture partner of the Group (including
any director, whether executive and whether independent or not,
of the Group) who is in full-time or part-time employment with
the Company or any subsidiaries, (b) any person who have
contributed or may contribute to the Group.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 8
December 2014 unless the Company seeks the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit
under the Share Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes of the Company will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating 10% limit.

Details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in the
section headed “Statutory and General Information” in Appendix
V to the Prospectus. The principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme are summarised as follows:

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 18 November 2014 and remains in force until
17 November 2024. The Company may, by resolution in general
meeting or, such date as the Board determined, terminate the
Share Option Scheme at any time without prejudice to the
exercise of options granted prior to such termination.

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option
granted shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer for the grant of option (“Date of Grant”) which
must be a trading day;

(2)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and

(8  the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.
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Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within the
date as specified in the offer letter issued by the Company. The
exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years commencing on the
date of grant and expiring on the last day of such 10-year period
subject to the provisions for early termination as contained in the
Share Option Scheme.

The total number of new shares of the Company that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share options schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 24,000,000 shares, which
represents 10% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the
date of this report.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
grantee under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject
to issuance of a circular by the Company and approved by its
shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, is required to be approved by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

From the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to 31
December 2014, no options were granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

Additional particulars of the Company’s Share Option Scheme
are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2014 was any of the
Company and its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age
18, had any right to subscribe for the shares in, or debentures
of, the Company, or had exercise any such right.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
or Short Positions in Shares, Underlying

Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors and chief executives of
the Company had the following interests in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company, its Group
members and/or associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer contained in the
Listing Rules:
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The Company b /N

Number of
ordinary

Name of Capacity/ shares held Percentage of

Name of Director Group member nature of interest (Note 1)  shareholding
BEEBRRYE

EEEH SEREER B ERtE (FfF=E1) BREDL

Mr. Chan Wing Yin The Company Interest in a controlled 180,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 2) shares (L)
PRECE S /NG| REthEEER (HE2) 180,000,000 %
Bctn (L)

Mrs. Chan Yung The Company Interest of spouse (Note 3) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
PREZL /NG| o rE s (P7E3) 180,000,000 %
f& 4 (L)
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Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company or the relevant associated corporation

2. The Company is held as to approximately 75% by Million Pearl Holdings
Ltd. (“Million Pearl”). Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin
and 30% by Mrs. Chan Yung. Mr. Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs.
Chan Yung. Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Yin is taken to be interested in
the same number of shares in which Mrs. Chan Yung is interested.

3. Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs.
Chan Yung. Mrs. Chan Yung is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wing Yin. Under
the SFO, Mrs. Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of

M
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2. 7872 & # Million Pearl Holdings Ltd. ([Milion Pearl ) # 4 #75%
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shares to which Mr. Chan Wing Yin is interested. PR
Associated Corporation B
Number of
Name of ordinary
associated Capacity/ shares held Percentage of
Name of Director corporation nature of interest (Note 1)  shareholding
BEEZRERHE
EEER B =B B HntE (BFaE1) BREDL
Mr. Chan Wing Yin Million Pearl Beneficial owner/ 10 shares 100%
Interest of spouse 10 It
PRECER St & Ena AT BERE
Mrs. Chan Yung Million Pearl Beneficial owner/ 10 shares 100%
Interest of spouse 10 it
PRE L+ Ena A i BEE
Note: G
1. The disclosed interest represents the interests in the associated 1. FIT i BE hE 25 5 FAAEEE X B Million Pearl ) f2s - HAMRAE L4

corporation, Million Pearl, which is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin
and 30% by Mrs. Chan Yung. Under the SFO, each of Mr. Chan Wing Yin
and Mrs. Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of
shares in which other is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) of the Listing Rules.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and/or Short Position in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company

As at 31 December 2014, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief

executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of

FERRREMALTRAEQ T RS RAREK
R zERER KR

RZZ—ME+—-A EJr*EI CBLEEFTRA AT
AL/ BB (BFRARALTETBRAERINRAER

Bl sARRA A o R - Tﬁﬁﬁi%&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ-m#f&
HE K 1§IJ§€XV*B%2&%3”*1 XARAR AR

the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company Mz slX B » kB8 ARIEH %&HHTMWJ%BSB
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,  {&A&AF] /,\Tgmﬂxﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁqé’]%\ KEWT -
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
Number of
ordinary % of
shares held interest in
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest (Note 1) the Company
BEZEREA REQAFZ
REEE HE B0 RmtE (PfFEE1) EZED
Million Pearl (Note 2) Beneficial owner 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
Million Pearl (Fi5£2) EmEAA 180,000,000 f% (L)
Mr. Chan Wing Yin Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
PRECE 5o 4 RirEE R (MEE3) 180,000,000 % (L)
Mrs. Chan Yung Interest of spouse (Note 4) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
PREZ+ o BrEss (et 4) 180,000,000 f% (L)
Notes: PRE -
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the 1. [LI REJZATRARRSAEEBREK B R RHITE ©
Company or the relevant Group member.
2. Million Pearl is directly interested in approximately 75% of the Company. 2. Million Pearl %8 A R 41 75% K B 4 4 o
3. The Company is held as to approximately 75% by Million Pearl. Million Pearl 3. N2 &) B Million Pearl £ 5 4) 75% 42 2% © M|I||on Pearl 3 i &&
is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs. Chan Yung. Mr. BhRERBRELLDRIEHET70% K% 30%Es o BREE 4 AE
Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung. Under the SFO, Mr. Chan B THRCE o BUREBE S KBEERA - F?éé%ﬁ*ﬁi?&ﬁﬁﬂ?

Wing Yin is taken to be interested in the same number of shares in which
Mrs. Chan Yung is interested.

4. Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs.
Chan Yung. Mrs. Chan Yung is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wing Yin. Under
the SFO, Mrs. Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mrs. Chan Yung is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the
Directors were not aware of any other persons/entities (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Competition and Conflict of Interests

During the year, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of
the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any
of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the

Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, neither did the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s
listed securities.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding the
Company’s securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
since its listing on 8 December 2014 up to the date of this
annual report.

Corporate Governance Report

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages
26 to 36 in this annual report.

Closure of the Register of Members

To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the Company
to attend the AGM to be held on Tuesday, 26 May 2015, the
register of members will be closed from Thursday, 21 May 2015
to Tuesday, 26 May 2015, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be
entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrars, Tricor Investor Services Limited, Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 20 May 2015.
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Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held on 26 May 2015. Shareholders should
refer to details regarding the AGM in the circular of the Company
and the notice of meeting and form of proxy accompanying
thereto.

Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Ermst & Young, is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By order of the Board

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Chan Wing Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the shareholders of Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yan
Tat Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 144, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the

consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A BAT RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

25 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEmR

Year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—ZF—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

2014 2013
—E-NEF —E-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT = FBT FHET
Revenue & 5 663,566 581,557
Cost of sales SHERA (523,127) (446,418)
Gross profit EFH 140,439 135,139
Other income and gains Ho A A 2 Wegs 5 31,231 7,871
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAY (24,878) (21,850)
Administrative expenses THRAX (68,055) (73,883)
Other expenses HFx (22,037) (888)
Finance costs BEMAK 7 (5,843) (3,567)
Profit before tax BRBLAT R 6 50,857 42,822
Income tax expense FT3 T 10 (6,649) (3,055)
Profit for the year FREF 44,208 39,767
Attributable to: TH AL
Owners of the Company EA/NGIEZZE DN 44,209 39,769
Non-controlling interest IRt (1) ()
44,208 39,767
Earnings per share attributable AAREBESEEA
to ordinary equity holders EAEEREF
of the Company 13
Basic and diluted HEANEE HK24.0 cents & {ll  HK22.1 cents &1l

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the

financial statements.

BB FH BRI WK 12HE -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEHEBER

Year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE —FE—MFE+=-H=+—HIFFZ

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Profit for the year FREF 44,208 39,767
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) Ht2EWBA(EE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be REZBEERSEEEREDN
reclassified to profit or loss in Hip 2w A (Ei8) :
subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of an available-for-sale  AJfft HEREH A FEEZH)
investment 207 21
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINETGHE N E R
foreign operations (10,741) 11,887
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve JESH— M B A B
upon deregistration of a subsidiary HENREZEIR (8,363) -
Other Comprehensive Income/ FREMEEBA(FHE)
(Loss) for the year (18,897) 11,908
Total Comprehensive Income FREZEBALE
for the year 25,311 51,675
Attributable to: THALREL
Owners of the Company KRalEB A 25,312 51,677
Non-controlling interest FEIE AR (1) @)
25,311 51,675
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

31 December 2014 —ZF—pFE+=-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M5t FHxT FHET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BN 14 300,515 282,487
Prepaid land lease payments TafS L EFRIE 15 6,086 6,509
Deposits for purchases of items of BEWE  BERZREIER
property, plant and equipment iz e 16 8,542 9,331
Deferred tax assets EREFRIAE E 27 8,171 7,064
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 18 1,350 1,173
Loan to an investee ERTHRESSR 18 2,248 2,306
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 326,912 308,870
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =& 19 51,758 60,130
Trade and bills receivables B SR FIA R EREE 20 201,523 204,520
Prepayments, deposits TERIE - ke &k
and other receivables H e I GROR 21 16,604 22,148
Tax recoverable AT U @175 18 - 496
Pledged deposits and restricted cash EEPTEREEH RS 22 21,880 17,957
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHERR 22 154,137 45,060
Total current assets MEBEERE 445,902 350,311
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables B o RN FIERENRE 23 128,827 118,040
Other payables and accruals Hib e s e E 24 51,314 38,525
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HRSRITE R 25 100,174 86,222
Finance lease payables B AR E R SRIE 26 2,349 3,525
Due to a related company FEAT— R REEE R B R08 36(d)) 55 -
Due to a then minority shareholder ENER—B D ERERRE  36(d)i) - 2,187
Tax payable JEB 1A 12,498 9,535
Total current liabilities mE B EERE 295,217 258,034
Net current assets REEEFE 150,685 92,277
Total assets less current liabilities WEERARBER 477,597 401,147
BRESBEREBRAR F82014 55



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R R

31 December 2014 —ZE—PF+_-HA=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 FHET T
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 477,597 401,147
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEERITER 25 54,435 40,023
Finance lease payables RIEHEREMNFRIA 26 1,160 2,039
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBA & 27 56 255
Due to shareholders FETIREE 1B 36(d)(ii) - 87,137
Deferred income RIEI A 24 3,772 3,868
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEER 59,423 133,322
Net assets BEEE 418,174 267,825
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners of EAREETAEGER
the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 28 2,400 -
Reserves HE 30(a) 415,774 267,399
418,174 267,399
Non-controlling interest JEPE AR RE RS - 426
Total equity HarEE 418,174 267,825
Chan Yung Chan Wing Yin
FRE PREE
Director Director
EFE E2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—ZF—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREARE
Available-
for-sale
Issued Share investment  Exchange Non-
share  premium Merger Capital ~revaluation fluctuation ~ Reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve funds profits Total interest equity
TLERE
BRARA RORER AHEE  RARE  EGER EXRBREE GBEE REW G FERRE  gEE
Notes  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKBO0O  HK$000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000
i3 Tan TR TR TR TEm TEn  TER Tan TEm TEn TER
At1 January 2013 RZE-=5-F-4 - - 1 - - 50914 23,841 134,450 218206 428 218,634
Profitoss) for the year Fhiatl/ (58) - - - - - - - 30,769 30,769 9 3767
Other comprehensive income for the year:  EREH2EHA :
Changes in fair value of TREERENATEED
an avaiable-for-sale investment - - - - 2 - - - 21 - il
Exchange differences on translation o~ AEENFREL £8
foreign operations - - - - - 11,867 - - 11,867 - 11,887
Total comprehensive income/oss) ERRERA/(BE)EE
for the year - - - - 2 11,867 - 30,769 51677 2 51,675
Transfer from retained profits ELERE ] - - - - - - 2,69 (2,69 - - -
2013 interim dhidend R-cEaERS 12 - - - - - - - (2.484) 2484 - 2484)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=5+2A=-A
and 1 January 2014 R=%-mE-A-R - - 1 - 21 71801 26)536° 169,040 267,399 426 267,825
Profit{oss) or the year Epgtl/(B8) - - - - - - - 4,209 4,209 [ 44208
Other comprehensive income for the year:  ERE 2 EUA -
Changes in fair value of an TEHERENATES
avallable-for-sale investment - - - - 207 - - - 207 - 207
Bxchange diffeences on ransation of BB EBEN 28
forelgn operations - - - - - {10,741) - - (10741) - (10,741
Realisation of exchange fluctuation HH-ENELIREL D
reserve upon the deregistration of EE2ER
a subsidary - - - - - (8,363 - - (8,363 - 8,363
Total comprehensive income/{oss) FREERN/(BR)EE
forthe year - - - - 0 (19104 - “oy %30 M %3
Acquistion of non-controling interest WE SRR 36(c)f) - - - 79) - - - - (73) (425) (500)
Consideration paid by the Company T3 Yan Tt Group
inrespect of acquistion of Yan Tat Limted BEARE
Group Limited - - 0] - - - - - ) - )
Waiver of amounts dug to shareholders — #%ERERFUE 361c]i) - - - 60,530 - - - - 60,530 - 60,530
Capitalisation issue of shares ERERRR 20 1,800 (1,800 - - - - - - - - -
Issue of new shares in comnection with 3t & R AFEERAHR
inital public offering 2(e) 600 73,200 - - - - - - 73,800 - 73,800
Share issue expenses BOEGED - 8,791) - - - - - - 8,791) - 8,791)
Transfer from retained profts ERERBET - - - - - - 3507 (3,507) - - -
Transfer of statutory resenve upon HE-ENEL AR
deregstration of a subsidiary SRtTRE - - - - - - (3,705 3,705 - - -
At 31 December 2014 WZE-RETZA=1-H 2,400 62,609 - 60,455 28 5097 26,338 13447 418174 - 18174
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE —FE—MFE+=-H=+—HIFFZ

58

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises, a portion of the profits of certain subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) is required to be transferred to the PRC
reserve funds which are restricted as to use. These PRC entities are not
required to effect any further transfer when the amount of the PRC reserve
funds reaches 50% of their registered capital. The PRC reserve funds can
be used to make good their future losses or to increase their registered
capital.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$415,774,000 (2013: HK$267,399,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

REAERINEIRE R AR RAR - BT HEARLME ([
BDMBRRMBIENAERETEFERES  MAEHE
ASWABESZIRS - ETRREEERSASTELETRER
M AR B 50% B+ RINZEME I E(E — S 888 - hEREEE
S AT 1 B 1R S 1R RO SFA 480 ok FR S sk e S

ZERERPBEREA BRI E NG E FE415,774,000
BT (ZZ—=4 : 267,399,000 7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁéi

Year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—ZF—NF+_F=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E2-ImF —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ihg=s FET FHET
Cash flows from operating RETHAMBHEERE
Activities
Profit before tax FR 750 A1 g A 50,857 42,822
Adjustments for: BT RIERE
Finance costs B E RN 7 5,843 3,567
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 5 (306) (332)
Depreciation e 6 16,754 15,337
Fair value gains on derivative TRAEPERITES F
financial instruments not qualified TEMRFERZEFRE
as hedges, net 5,6 - (14)
Recognition of prepaid land lease ERIER LT E s
payments 15 265 266
Write-down of inventories to net WOR AT & = A #4375
realisable value 6 226 1,075
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) B 5 R IBRE
of trade receivables, net (B ERE) FE 6 (1,484) 257
Write-off of items of property, plant and MEEmE - BE
equipment KR 518 B 6 - 613
Write-off of a deposit paid for purchase MERIBEYE - HE R
of an item of property, plant and RBBEEX N zEe
equipment 6 1,913 -
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE
plant and equipment, net NEEHTE B WEF 5 5,6 (18,623) (326)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation JEH— R B A AR
reserve upon deregistration BN 2
of a subsidiary R 5,6 (8,363) -
Write-back of trade and other payables B[O E 5 e 78 &
E A IR 5,6 (569) -
Gain from non-interest-bearing financial KA BB ZHER
arrangement Wz 5 - (5,334)
46,513 57,931
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERD,(Em) 6,963 (10,140)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 e WA M eI E R
bills receivables /(3 hn) 2,205 (13,801)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERIE - Ze REMER
deposits and other receivables IR, (3E ) 5,071 (9,208)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills B S ENIERENEZE
payables #an, O ) 13,185 (500)
Increase in other payables and accruals Hth FE A RUE &
FESTERIEIE AN 13,524 642
Increase in an amount due to FE —E B HS A I RIA N
a related company 55 -
Decrease in an amount due to EN—%ERK2
a then minority shareholder DB R AR R R IER (2,044) -
Exchange realignment & H 3R (3,172) 3,838
Cash generated from operations ELfBKENRS 82,300 28,762
Interest received 2 HFILE 306 332
Interest paid BEFLE (6,758) (4,746)
Interest element of finance lease rental EEHEERES NI
payments F 2B 7 (338) (310)
Hong Kong profits paid BB ARG (87) (1,256)
Overseas taxes paid BEINEIE (4,332) (2,224)
Net cash flows from operating activities RESTEMEIRS RE R 71,091 20,558
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE —FE—MFE+=-H=+—HIFFZ

2014 2013
—E—mF —ZT—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
hg=2 FHET T
Net cash flows from operating activities BEEHFBRERE T 71,091 20,558
Cash flows from investing RETHAMEHEESRE
Activities
Purchases of items of property, plantand  BE®WE - BEX
equipment FBIEE (37,112 (75,420)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE - KE &
plant and equipment HBIE B FTISIE 952 515
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEYE BENX
property, plant and equipment HEEB T NIES 16 (6,719) (4,456)
Increase in a time deposit with original W BERE R R HA B #R18
maturity of more than three months =B Az EBFRIE N -
when acquired, pledged as security EERIERITTRE
for banking facilities Z AR 22 (3,747) -
Decrease in restricted cash ZR BRI 1,916 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities & EFHFTHAREE REF5E (44,710) (79,361)
Cash flows from financing BEEEHRERESRE
Activities
Proceeds from issue of shares BATIR D PRIS SRIE 28(e) 73,800 -
Share issue expenses BHEErTHRY (8,791) -
New bank borrowings FEIRITIE 289,940 219,961
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (259,664) (183,717)
Decrease in amounts due to shareholders  fi < A% 3 7R 8 5 > (5,668) (1,846)
Acquisition of a non-controlling interest W FE R R i 2 36(d)(ii) (500) -
Capital element of finance lease rental BMARERSMNTRN
payments BRI S (3,675) (4,094)
Dividends paid EARERE 12 - (2,484)
Net cash flows from financing activities BB BRI S RE R 85,442 27,820
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeERBLESEYEM
cash equivalents (m2) 258 111,823 (30,983)
Cash and cash equivalents at FURESNBEEEY
beginning of year 61,067 91,113
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXR& &) FHF & (620) 937
Cash and cash equivalents at end FREESRBEEEEY
of year 172,270 61,067
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBEEEWERIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances and cash and cash & B &R ZFAEIR S &
equivalents as stated in the consolidated ~ $R1T4EARIES &
statement of financial position BeEEYD 22 154,137 45,060
Time deposits with original maturity of less A S REEI R DR
than three months when acquired, —RAMTEEHER
pledged as security for banking facilities BEERERITHE R
and bills payable FET =g 2 AR 22 18,133 16,007
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the A EERERAEHES L
consolidated statement of cash flows WEZEEY 172,270 61,067
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Statement of Financial Position

B #5 iR R

31 December 2014 —ZF—pFE+=-A=+—H

2014
—E-mE
Notes HK$’000
B 5T FET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERNBERRNEE 17 1
Current assets REBEE
Due from a subsidiary JEU — M B R R FUB 17 279
Prepayments TR SRIE 21 840
Cash and bank balances Re NIRITEER 22 68,325
Total current assets MENEELBER 69,444
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H e RIB S EET FUR 24 2,171
Due to a subsidiary JER —RIM B R R B 17 23,197
Total current liabilities MEN A BB 25,368
Net current assets REBEEFE 44,076
Net assets BEFE 44,077
Equity s
Issued capital BEETARA 28 2,400
Reserves B 30(b) 41,677
Total equity farEes 44,077
Chan Yung Chan Wing Yin
FRE BREE
Director Director
E2
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R R BT

31 December 2014

2.1

62

—F-mE+-A=+—A

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
8 July 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands. The registered office of the Company is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at Room 809-810,
Kwong Sang Hong Centre, 151-153 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of printed circuit boards.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 8 December 2014 (the “Listing Date”). In
the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Million Pearl
Holdings Ltd. which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

Reorganisation and Basis of

Presentation

Pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation as explained in the
paragraph headed “Reorganisation” in the section headed
“History, Corporate Structure and Reorganisation” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 26 November 2014 (the
“Prospectus”), the Company became the holding company
of the Group on 11 August 2014. The Company and the
Group were under the common control of Mr. Chan Wing
Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) before and after the Reorganisation.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the
Company are prepared as if the Reorganisation had been
completed at the beginning of 1 January 2013 rather than
from the date of incorporation of the Company by applying
the principles of merger accounting.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss, statements
of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows of the Group for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 include the results
and cash flows of all companies then comprising the
Group from the earliest date presented or since the date
when the subsidiaries first came under the common
control of the Controlling Shareholders, where this is a
shorter period. The consolidated statements of financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and 2013
have been prepared to present the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiaries using the existing book values from the
controlling shareholders’ perspective. No adjustments are
made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or
liabilities as a result of the Reorganisation.

2.1

ARIEHR
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AE] o RN AR FEM 9 SE R Hh ik 4 Clifton House,
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Lr809EB8I0E ©
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 S 2= Y =

31 December 2014

2.1

2.2

—FE—WE+=A=1+—H

Reorganisation and Basis of

Presentation (continued)

Equity interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than
the Controlling Shareholders prior to the Reorganisation
are presented as non-controlling interests in equity in
applying the principles of merger accounting. All intra-
group transactions and balances have been eliminated on
combination.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance relating to the preparation of financial
statements, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32),
in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections
76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for an available-for-sale
investment which has been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2014. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries below.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
and new interpretation for the first time for the current
year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

Amendment to HKFRS 2
included in Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 3
included in Annual Improvements

Definition of Vesting Condition’

Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business

2010-2012 Cycle Combination’
Amendment to HKFRS 13 Short-term Receivables and
included in Annual Improvements Payables

2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 1
included in Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

! Effective from 1 July 2014
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2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (continued)

Other than explained below regarding the impact of
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKAS 36, and amendment
to HKFRS 13 included in Annual Improvements 2010-
2012 Cycle, the adoption of the above revised standards
and interpretation has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.

(@)

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off”
for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems
(such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group as the Group does not have any
offsetting arrangement.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended
disclosure requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit which
is not impaired. In addition, the amendments require
the disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the
assets or cash-generating units for which an
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed
during the reporting period, and expand the
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
measurement for these assets or units if their
recoverable amounts are based on fair value less
costs of disposal. The amendments have had no
impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest
rates can be measured at invoice amounts when the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The amendment
has had no impact on the Group.

2.3
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2.4 New and Revised HKFRSs and New 24 ERERRRMNIET REIEITEEBY
Disclosure Requirements under the BHREZEUREB(ATKRBNETH
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance not HiEERTE
yet Effective and Adopted
The Group has not applied the following new and revised AEERRR L EHFRERERAUATEHEME
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, W ARAEREFR] RS E] BB & 28] -
in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* AN BREENER ZHIR!
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between EEMBREENE0RR  RELEERE AT
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or BheERZ 850 REPEZANEE
Joint Venture? B (ZE—%F) HEFE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investments Entities: Applying the BEMBREENE10% REEE : ERAAEAK
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception? BEMBREENE12RE  HER
(2011) BEeERE 8RB
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of (Z2—F)
Interests in Joint Operations? BENBREENE RG] KBRS EEER
Wi BT #
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® B REENE 145 EERTRF’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BENBREENE 157 FREPENEM 70
Customers®
Amendments to HKAS1 Disclosure Initiative? BEQHENZ 1R BEER
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of BEQHENZ16%R BEUEZNNE
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation? BEeHENERRNE]  REHHE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants? BRI EAE 165K BE FENEY’
and HKAS 41 BRI ENE 4 ROET
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee BRQREREORNETT  FEENTE  ESHH
Contributions’
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial BRQRAETRNET  BUABHAZERE
HKAS 27 (2011) Statements? (Z2—5)
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs ZE-FFEE-F-FHE  ZEEEUEHEES
2010-2012 Cycle HEELE BT
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs' ZE—FE-T-CFEY  SEEBUEHESEL
2011-2013 Cycle HEELE BT
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs? ZE-—FE-F-EEE  SEEEUEHEES
2012-2014 Cycle HEELE HEiT
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 ! RZT—WF+ A —BRZEMENFERRER
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 2 RZF—RF-A B2 ERBNFEBRER
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 8 " tHE—-F Bz ERABOFE BB ER
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 4 RZZE—N\F—A— B2 &FRAEFE HRE £
5 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual 5 BRR - —"F— ARz BRABREFENHR
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and REREMNE B EREERER  WHAEETER

therefore not applicable to the Group

AEBIEAEFGETRERI REETREY
BMEERZEE - R REHEZFHT RE
EARAMBREENRTHAEEZEER
BRI BARRENEATE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

66 YAN TAT GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 S 2= Y =

31 December 2014

2.4

2.5
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New and Revised HKFRSs and New
Disclosure Requirements under the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance not

yet Effective and Adopted (continued)

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of
certain information in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in
the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these changes.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

2.4

2.5
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBERBE#®)

Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments
and available-for-sale investment at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

AFEFTE
$%E%%ﬁ%%$$@$ﬁﬁ§ﬁﬁi@@
TARAIHEHERE - AFEARTEAHMS
SLEEZEBETHNERFR %¢m%§E%WH
SR A ERZNMER - AFEFEDERD
EEEYEBREENRINEEREENEE
MIGHETT KEARBEEZMHBERT - BIRE
ERBENZAANTSETHRE - T2REE
BN EAREETEANTS - EEHEBE
WATFEDERTE2HEEAEERAETE
RATAMBRAE2(BEMB2HEUFARS
SELCERNZHTRITE)

FHMBEEN AT EFEGHR—ETHLHE
ERBRARARERSEMRERAZEE - B
BEEENE THEURARE RKERRER
FEENS —ATH2EEMEEKLBENEN
ﬁbjj

AEREREARTRBLEEBEHTHE
BUAGFERATENMBERE - NEEEMAAMA
ERG  \BBELREERSERITEEHEAR
Iz e

R BHRRFABLABRBERAFENMEEERE
& ORBEATEASREMEBEANRE
RBEABIRIE TR T EERNETHE

F1HR - ERXEEARMETHREER
BEMRE CREHE)

Fo2k - ERERFEAEMEBEKN
R B (B ER) RIER
BB ABURMBETTA

E3& ERNHAHEAEMS BEX
BN AT B K AR B 8 A BUR

HBETE

YAN TAT GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 S 2= Y =

31 December 2014 —ZF—pFE+=-A=+—H

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBEREE®)

Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25

70

Policies (continued)

Related parties 27
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that (@)
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or 5%

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b)
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) ~ the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBEREE®)

Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 2% t0 4.5%
Leasehold improvements 10% to 20%
Plant and machinery 9% to 18%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% to 33%
Motor vehicles 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting

72

Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation (continued)

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings and
leasehold improvements under construction, which is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss
SO as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBEREE®)

Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investment of the Group is a
non-derivative financial asset in unlisted equity investment.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investment is subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investment are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial asset in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold
the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBEREE®)
Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets RIBRAMBEE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBEREE®)

Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For the available-for-sale financial investment, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments
(continued)

In the case of the equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the statement
of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss and loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBEREE®)

Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities held
for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (a) the amount of the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(b) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBEREE®)

Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBEREE®)

Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

FRi&®L (40

A AR E R R - A RE AR
RREMRSARBAERNS  BEHBAEE—
RERAR - HHRAARERTEHN - "ATANI
HEZEMRTREEE  SBNOARPANA
BERkABAMBABRESL  AREHAEER
RBAHR - M

o  (HWERABAUHRBERHEEZRNELCHEE
EXBE-—FRBIREBEHNZRZHNE
WREESEE MAEXSHHEE
MRERTGNNEROELE - AED
O R

o FRMEBRRMERE R A HIRE
ZRME  BEEHUEZRAARETR
AR - B B 1R B R B IR ERTUR
Ao ATRAEEZSEREZREN e

RIELRIAEE °

EENEEENRAEESERSHRTUAE
B - BB A REA RAVERDGE A B AR HI 288
HEAOBERIREE - AR R IR E ERE
B - RERNELERAEER BEREMRER
APl - WA RTBER 2 S0 8 R A A A LA U B 2 D
HE D IEIETH IR B E R HERR ©

EEHREERARRENEANZAR(EE
REESEERER)WOREAE  RENES
HIRCHEMHEE O BEMOBRE(RBE)F
o

A AT AORRBIITHRER - AIABIHATR IR E
ERHEMHIARE - MEEHAER —ER
MERNFA-HEHEEH AECHBREENR
EERA R ER] B AR o

BRESEERBRAE FH2014 83



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R R BT

31 December 2014

—F-mE+-A=+—A

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting

84

Policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

When the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold; and

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBEREE®)

Policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Company in an independently
administered fund. The Company’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain specific percentage of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.
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Policies (continued)
Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have
been approved by the shareholder.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting 25 FESTBEREE®)

Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Determination of functional currency

In determining the functional currency of each entity of the
Group, judgement is required to determine and consider
the currency that mainly influences sales prices of goods;
the currency that mainly influences costs of providing
goods; the currency in which funds from financing activities
are generated; and the currency in which receipts from
operating activities are usually retained, etc. The functional
currency of each entity is determined based on
management’s assessment of the primary economic
environment in which the entities operate. When the
indicators are mixed and the functional currency is not
obvious, management uses its judgement to determine
the functional currency that most faithfully represents the
economic effects of the underlying transactions, events
and conditions.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Measurement of available-for-sale
investment at fair value

The fair values of the financial instrument that is not traded
in an active market are estimated by management based
on the valuation performed by independent qualified valuers
by using valuation techniques that requires various sources
of information and assumptions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s available-for-sale investment at 31 December
2014 was HK$1,350,000 (2013: HK$1,173,000).
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continueq)

Estimation uncertainty (continueq)

Provision and write-down of inventories to
net realisable value

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged analyses of
the Group’s inventories, projections of expected future
saleability/usage of goods/materials and management
experience and judgement. Write-down of inventories will
be made when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Net realisable
value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. Actual saleability/usage of goods/materials may be
different from estimation and profit or loss could be
affected by differences in this estimation.

Provision for income taxes

Provision for income tax is made based on the taxable
income for the period as determined by the Group. The
determination of taxable income involves the exercise of
judgement on interpretation of the relevant tax rules and
regulations. The amounts of income tax and hence profit
or loss could be affected by any interpretations and
clarifications which the tax authority may issue from time
to time.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of
the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss
arising from the inability of its debtors to make the required
payments. The Group makes its estimates based on the
aging of its receivable balances, debtors’ creditworthiness,
past payment history and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate so
that the actual impairment loss might be higher than
expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis
of making the allowance.

3.
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continueq)

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding tax in
respect of the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries
of the Group established in Mainland China to the extent
that the directors are of the opinion that they would be
probable for distribution in the foreseeable future.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax liabilities that should
be recognised. Further details are contained in note 27 to
the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Recognition of deferred tax assets primarily involves
management judgement and estimations regarding the
taxable profits of the entities in which the losses arose.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

3.

EESHER AR @)

s NABIE R ()

ELBAEA R

IR ST 1T 2 K 42 S A e B O 3 T R 2 40
T B 2 R oK B 1 T 28 5 52 A I ) 1A I 46 2
IR BFEOAMBINBLRER - EEMBHRN
EEBUAR ESEN  EREAELEALE -
BEH BRI B KM LT -

EERBEE
ERERIABETIAERRABRER - 51IRA
] BEA FESRTL A AT (A TR B 1R 0 AR A 3K - #E
REERAEETESREREHELBEZ
BB 2 ERTUG N R A R A5t o BERE I HERR
EETRIAE E 2 B H B R BOR KB R E N H
FIREEE AR A Bk - SERIARRBIR A BIHES
1EH ERE TR A -

YAN TAT GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 S 2= Y =

31 December 2014 —ZF—pFE+=-A=+—H

Operating Segment Information

The Group focuses primarily on the manufacturing and
selling of printed circuit boards during the year. Information
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker,
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, focuses on the operating results of the Group
as a whole as the Group’s resources are integrated and
no discrete operating segment financial information is
available. Accordingly, no operating segment information
is presented.

Geographical information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with its operations being carried out in the PRC, which is
considered as the country of domicile by management.

(@) Revenue from external customers

REHTER

A SRR P B R B RN BRI B R
1R e MAEE T BB REAEROAR (B
ERH ERRR ) R ARE MRS E
4 AAREESARE - LB IEEH T
MISERT 25 - Bt - L2 ISR BE
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i EE R
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(@) ZREINMBEFHWES

2014 2013

—E-F —T—=%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Mainland China FR B AT 334,866 321,219

Europe BUM 142,385 112,471

Hong Kong aH 53,711 55,938

North America JEZEM 65,366 52,271
Asia (except Mainland China and S (B IER B A & EE)

Hong Kong) 48,532 28,419
Africa FEM 17,460 10,269
Oceania KM 1,246 886
South America B EM - 84

663,566 581,557

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers who placed the orders.
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Operating Segment Information (continued)

Geographical information (continued)
(b) Non-current assets

REDEER ()
HEER (#)
(b) FRBEE

2014 2013

- —F-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Hong Kong &5 1,526 5,037
Mainland China PR A 3 315,865 295,596
317,391 300,633

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes financial
instruments and deferred tax assets.

Revenue from each major customer which accounted for

FHERBEEEMDENEEMEI R
TERERTAREENREE -

FEEI2EPHME (545 B EE 10% 3 2A

10% or more of the Group’s revenue is set out below: )P T
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Customer A ZEA 160,283 140,178
Customer B ZFB 94,260 62,026
Sale of goods HEEM 254,543 202,204
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5.
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for

3 -
H&¥D‘IEHK’§ EeekeE A2 EEmRnk
it

HAWA R K

ELRESIMBREHEROERFE - Ka - B

returns and trade discounts. An analysis of revenue, other

LISU\&H&Z/_\/WEW%ZZZDT

income and gains is as follows:

2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Revenue 25
Sale of goods HEE MR 663,566 581,557
Other income Hibl A
Bank interest income HRITH S A 306 332
Government grants received from HFEBHABNE BT
the PRC government authorities” BUATHEE " 916 686
Others Eih 511 120
1,733 1,138
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME BEK
plant and equipment, net REEB WmFEE 18,623 326
Sales of scraps SHEREM 694 829
Write-back of trade and other payables %é‘@ 2 5 N B At e~ 3R 1B 569 -
Gain on settlement of derivative financial 4 HT4 4 b T BB IS
instruments - 230
Fair value gains on derivative financial PREEHRERH
instruments not qualifying as hedges, MEEBIAQTE
net W %5 RE - 14
Gain from non-interest-bearing financial R B 3Eat+ B 152 HE
arrangement P g - 5,334
Realisation of exchange fluctuation ST — FE P B A A
reserve upon deregistration of SR e
a subsidiary B3R 8,363 -
Foreign exchange differences, net ME =R 1,249 -
29,498 6,733
31,231 7,871
A Government grants have been received from the PRC government A BEFREBNE BB EBAHE - UAREAEETRE

authorities in recognition of the Group’s efforts in environmental
awareness and protection, and technology development and

investing in Shenzhen.
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94

Profit before Tax 6. PBRBIADER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBRBRBALEF B (GTA)
(crediting):
2014 2013
—E—-mF —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt aE FER FHET
Cost of inventories sold"@ EERFERA"C 523,127 446,418
Minimum lease payments under T REFEERER
operating leases in respect of =EHEE
land and buildings 1,605 1,648
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN & 1,417 757
Depreciation e 14 16,754 15,337
Amortisation of land lease payments T b E B 15 265 266
Employee benefit expense® EERAMZe
(including directors’ remuneration as (‘B ¥EMT 5T 8 T4 ER
disclosed in note 8): MEEME) :
Wages, salaries, allowances, bonuses, T& - #4 - =28k -
commission and benefits in kind TEAL ~ e MBI 88,582 81,890
Pension scheme contributions IRIREE IR
(defined contribution schemes)* (EREHRGETED 205 169
Other staff welfare HEMmBETEF 5,737 6,183
94,524 88,242
Research and development costs e R 2R AR 10,925 13,883
Write-off of items of property, W -~ BE MEREEE
plant and equipment 55 14 - 613
Write-off of a deposit paid for purchase of Mi$HFLEE EWE - KE K&
an item of property, REEBE Nz EE
plant and equipment 16 1,913 -
Write-down of inventories to W EEr E35FE"
net realisable value” 226 1,075
Write-back of trade and other payables  $[51'8 5 & H i fiE (< 308 5 (569) -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of & 5 EWZIBRE,
trade receivables, net (BEmE) T8 20 (1,484) 257
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BMENMK
plant and equipment, net* IHE 2 W= F5Ee (18,623) (326)
Fair value gains on derivative financial PREEHRERNITAE
instruments not qualifying SR T AATE
as hedges, net* Iz F 58> - (14)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation S — RS A R A
reserve upon deregistration b R B
of a subsidiary* ZER (8,363) -
Foreign exchange differences, net* [ = RE TR (1,249) 4,205

*

Gains are included in “Other income and gains” and the losses are
included in “Administrative expenses”, as appropriate, in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Part of the employee benefit expense is included in “Cost of
inventories sold”.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had no material
forfeited contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years.

Write-down of inventories is included in “Cost of inventories sold”.

- WixARER - WA TEmRA RS - MEE
AFFA M7 J(ZEA) -

@ BoEREBFIMIGIA [BEFERA]

* RCET-MER-F-SF+-AST—A  A%EY
A E R MR T B AR R4 R RN RIS 814

E
A

A FEMBFA [EEFERA]
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7. Finance Costs 7. BER
Group
FiN=S
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Interests on: AT EIEHFLE
Bank loans and trust receipt loans ARAFRNTEHEEN
wholly repayable within five years or BEREENRITER
on demand MIEFEIRE 5,875 3,791
Bank loans wholly repayable over AR AFBBEEEED
five years BITER 854 955
Finance leases REMRE 338 310
Discounted bills BRIA =R 29 -
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities 17 FEIR A F BT AB2EH
not at fair value through profit or loss FEBENF B AT 7,096 5,056
Less: Interest capitalised* B BEEFE (3,564) (1,489)
3,532 3,567
Other finance costs: HAb g & A -
Imputed interest on non-interest-bearing IR BEIIS L HEMHE T B
financial arrangement 2,311 -
5,843 3,667
The borrowing costs had been capitalised at the rates of 6.7% to * AEEOETEIRFEFNEE.T%ET.36%(ZF—=4F :
7.36% (2013: 6.7% to 7.36%) per annum for the year. 6.7% £ 7.36%) EAAL,
RESBEEZRERAR F3R2014 95
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96

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32),

EERITHBARGH

BERTREFRFERZHFNIIRE LR A
MEBRBGED(F622F )R 11FE 788 W2
EREAANBIED (ERZ)F161EHELNT ¢

is as follows:
Group
RE
2014 2013
—E-NmE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fees =95 187 -
Other emoluments: H b e -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERNEWER 3,830 2,848
Commission Be 2,772 1,849
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BINEFETE 55 59
6,657 4,756
6,844 4,756
(a) Independent non-executive (@) BAFHITES

directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

FRADNBILIFNTEZZERWT

2014 2013

—E-mE —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming" fE KL A 17 -
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu" ERER B4 17 -
Mr. Yeung Kam Ho" o F =pivle i 17 -
51 -

A Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 18 A R-Z—NF+— A+ N\BEZTAEBE IR

November 2014.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2013: Nil).

YAN TAT GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERTHARHM &)
Remuneration (continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief (b) HITEBRITHAR
executive
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind Commission contributions remuneration
e 3:054 BIRBRIE i
ER ENFE A 3 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL FTHL TET FHL THL
2014 “Z-pmE
Executive directors: HIEE:
Mr. Chan Wing Yin* BREBSLE" 34 1,356 - 9 1,399
Ms. Chan Yung BELZL 34 803 - 14 851
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong BREXLE 34 761 - 17 812
Mr. Chan Yan Wing Bokdka 34 910 2,772 15 3,731
136 3,830 2,772 55 6,793
2013 —E-=F
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Chan Wing Yin* BRECE A - 1,209 - 15 1,224
Ms. Chan Yung RELZ+ - 625 - 15 640
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong BRREL LA - 652 - 15 667
Mr. Chan Yan Wing BREKEAE - 362 1,849 14 2,225
- 2,848 1,849 59 4,756
* Mr. Chan Wing Yin is also the chief executive officer of the FRECE XL TMABARRITTHRAEE °
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no remuneration was paid or
payable by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for the loss of office (2013: Nil).

FABELFREEEHTRERB LK
[F) & FA S (R (T B -

RER > AEBEBEMEMNERENHE
EMBE  (ERMAREBRHRIMAAR
SEENERBERMBE(ZT—=F:
&) -
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees
The five highest paid employees during the year included
two directors (2013: two directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2013:
three) highest paid employees, who are neither a director
nor the chief executive of the Company, are as follows:

TEEEEHNES
FRAEERSHFMESREME(ZE—=F:
ME)ESR EHFMFBHERN LXMES - 8T
=R(ZE—=F: ZR)BFHNER BIAR
BIFE SNSRI TR EL) RF AR F B 15 5t
LI

Group
RE
2014 2013
—ZE-lEF =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R KRB 4,051 3,655
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 1,220 599
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RGBT 48 40
5,319 4,294

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FHMERNA TRENSSHHNES GEEFRIHE
RS ABFIBMT

Number of employees

EEHHE
2014 2013
—E-IF —T-=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 2% 1,000,000 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &7 & 1,500,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T = 2,000,000 78 7T 1 B

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

2,000,001 78 7L & 2,500,000 78 7T - 1
2,500,001 7 7T & 3,000,000 7T

-
|

3 3

The non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees are also the members of senior management
of the Group.

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by
the Group to any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for the loss of office (2013: Nil).

FEFRFTHAZNESFHHEBTEAE
ESREEENKE

RER > AEERERLESSHHEBNH
N ERME - EAIMAREBE N IMAREE
BOBSHBEBREE (T —=F 8) -
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10. Income Tax 10. FrfE%
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEREFERDERFARBBEEN G ERE
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits A 16.5% (ZFB—=4F : 16.5%) 5244 -
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits Hipi R ERBUGE N HIBS RIB RSB 2E
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of FIERDERERMRITH R H o
tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.
All subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland China FR - ANEBERP RN HFTE B A BE
are subject to PRC corporate income tax at a standard %25% (=T —=4F : 25%) MR EM KHAZF
rate of 25% (2013: 25%) during the year, except for a BIEFTSH - EAEE—FHNBEAREFREA
subsidiary of the Group which qualified as a PRC High and HAFAEFPEEMRMEENER  RERNERE
New Technology Enterprise in Mainland China and a lower RPBECEMBHEEIS%R(ZZE—=F : 15%)
PRC corporate income tax rate of 15% (2013: 15%) had IR
been applied during the year.
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current — Hong Kong BEY — B/
Charge for the year F RN 1,060 593
Overprovision in prior years BEFE R (10) (10)
Current — Mainland China BNER — A
Charge for the year F RN 6,382 2,532
Underprovision/(overprovision) in BEFEERENRE,
prior years (EBEERE) 696 (627)
Deferred (note 27) IR (F5E27) (1,479) 567
Total tax charge for the year FABIEB RS 6,649 3,055
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10. Income Tax (continued)

100

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled
to the tax charge at the effective tax rate, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax

10. FRSBL(#)

BARB REKRZ BB AR PEREEREN
EEREFEERRGHRADEN ORI RIRE
BRI R EABIRM R - A RERB R (AN

FEREK) 7

BRI R e BRSBTS -

rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:

Group
rE
2014 2013
—E-mE —F—=
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FET FHET

Profit before tax PR AT 50,857 42,822
Tax charge at the statutory HETHERTHE

tax rate HIERY 8,391 16.5 7,066 16.5
Different tax rates for specific PR EEEMN

entities in the PRC NGRS (886) (1.7) (509) (1.2)
Adjustment in respect of current 38 1 B fE 5 AN Hf

tax of previous periods TRIER 2 686 1.3 (637) (1.9)
Income not subject to tax AR 2 WA (2,989) (5.9) (881) 2.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax A0 2 X H 3,473 6.9 194 0.5
Tax losses utilised from previous {88 FB 5 B HAfS 2

period TiIAE 18 (446) (0.9) (358) 0.9
Additional deduction of research  #fF % & B R A AN

and development costs EESMIR (1,580) (3.1) (1,824) (4.2)
Tax charge at the Group’s BRAREBERNE

effective rate FrERTIAR 6,649 13.1 3,055 7.1
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11. Profit Attributable to Owners of the

Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes
a loss of HK$20,932,000 (2013: Nil) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note
30(b)).

12. Dividends
The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

11.

12.

RRBEE AEMERR

HEZZ—NOF+_A=1+—HLEFE &2
HEEABLGESFBRIEEER 20,932,000,%71
(ZZ—=F &) HERARRIPBEREANE
12 (KI7E30(b)) °

RE
EEgTERMEBE_—F—
B RIRMN RS -

mE+—A=+—

The interim dividends paid by the Company’s subsidiaries AR I BB A &) 1) 2 AR AR BRR A A P ER AR B
to the Controlling Shareholders were as follows: LU

2014 2013

— ke —F=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Yan Tat Group Limited Yan Tat Group Limited - 2,484

13. Earnings per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of the
Company
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$44,209,000 (2013: HK$39,769,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
of 188,945,205 (2013: 180,000,000), on the assumption
that the Reorganisation and the capitalisation issue (note
28(d)) had been completed on 1 January 2013.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 in respect of a dilution as the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during these years.

13.

RESKEEZRERAT F5H2014

RRAEEEEEAARLGERER

HE-FT-—NF+-A=+t—HLEFEZEK
ERANSHEIBRERARRLBESFE AR
16 € A % 744,209,000 T( =T — = £
39,769,000/8 7T ) M 2 % 17 & 1B AR I AE 15 &
183,945,205 % ( = F — = £ : 180,000,000 % )
T HARBREANRE R ETT (M 7E28(d)
ER-_E—=F—H—H%K-

HAREERHE-_Z-—MNFER-_FT—=F+_
A=t RLSEYEABRERHENEZC %
TTEER E&I%ﬁ@t IEHEHREFERYZ
BRERBNERIFLAE -
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment

102

14. Y% - BERERE

Group rEEH
Furniture,
Land and Construction Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings inprogress  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
BE B
THRETF EEIR BE%E BE R RERRME RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT TATL TAT TAT TET TAT
31 December 2014 —E-ME+=A=1-A
At 31 December 2013 and
1 January 2014:
Cost 73,754 137,964 13,853 184,787 20,320 6,290 436,968
Accumulated depreciation (13,084) - (5,301) (113,088) (17,802) (5,206) (154,481)
Net carrying amount REFE 60,670 137,964 8,552 71,699 2,518 1,084 282,487
At1 January 2014, net of W=Z-RE-A-H"
accumulated depreciation iR EstE 60,670 137,964 8,552 71,699 2,518 1,084 282,487
Additions RE - 36,750 378 1,332 1,449 2,387 42,296
Transfer from deposits for EVARENE  BER
purchases of items of property, FEEENRE (F16)
plant and equipment (note 16) - - - 5,369 - - 5,369
Disposals HE (4,681) - - (728) - (20) (5,429)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (1,901) - (2,876) (10,111) (629) (1,237) (16,754)
Exchange realignment E58E (1,365) (3,681) (192) (2,129) (66) 1) (7,454)
At 31 December 2014, net of WZZ-RE
accumulated depreciation —A=t+-8B"
BB EHTE 52,723 171,033 5,862 65,432 3,212 2,193 300,515
At 31 December 2014: R-E-EE
+=A=+-A:
Cost RAK 65,523 171,033 13,894 184,038 21,322 7,205 463,015
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (12,800) - (8,032) (118,606) (18,050) (5,012) (162,500)
Net carrying amount REFE 52,723 171,033 5,862 65,432 3,272 2,193 300,515
31 December 2013 —E-=f+-fA=1-H
At1 January 2013: WZE-=5-A-H:
Cost KA 71,824 61,418 11,535 178,836 19,626 6,588 349,827
Accumulated depreciation 2itheE (10,644) - (2,.965) (102,768) (16,657) (438) (137,362)
Net carrying amount REFE 61,180 61,418 8,570 76,068 2,969 2,260 212,465
At 1 January 2013, net of W-Z-=5-f-R"
accumulated depreciation BB REHTE 61,180 61,418 8,570 76,068 2,969 2,260 212,465
Additions RE - 73,609 1,955 1,076 269 - 76,909
Transfer from deposits for EHARENE  BER
purchases of items of property, SHEEE Mk e (H5E16)
plant and equipment (note 16) - - - 1,706 - - 1,706
Disposals irk - - - (150) - (39) (189)
Wiite-off s - - - (605) ®) - 613)
Depreciation provided FRRERE
during the year (2,142) - (2,224) 9,009) (791) (1,17) (15,337)
Exchange realignment EHAE 1,632 2,937 251 2,613 79 34 7,546
At 31 December 2013, net of WoZ-—=F+-f=+-
accumulated depreciation B EMBREHNE 60,670 137,964 8,552 71,699 2518 1,084 282,487
At 31 December 2013: WZT-=F
+=A=+-A:
Cost KA 73,754 137,964 13,853 184,787 20,320 6,290 436,968
Acoumulated depreciation 2iHTE (13,084) - (5,301) (113,088) (17,802) (5,206) (154,481)
Net carrying amount REFE 60,670 137,964 8,552 71,699 2,518 1,084 282,487
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment continved)  14. ¥1% - BEREE (&)

The Group’s land and buildings, and construction in
progress, included above at cost, were valued at
HK$307.6 million as at 30 September 2014 in the
prospectus issued on 26 November 2014 in connection
with the listing of the Company’s shares on 8 December
2014. Had the Group’s land and buildings been included
in these financial statements at such valuation amount
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, an
additional depreciation charge of HK$540,000 would have
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The net carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment held under finance leases included in the
total amounts of plant and machinery and motor vehicles
at 31 December 2014 amounted to HK$11,623,000
(2013: HK$13,861,000) and HK$1,367,000 (2013: Nil),
respectively.

The Group’s land and buildings were included in property,
plant and equipment at their net carrying amounts as at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013 and held under
the following lease terms:

REE L REFRAER TR (BE LilEKAR
FIRRE ) ERBRER(KNAFARBEMNR=_Z—N
F+ZANBLELTMAZE  BHAEZT—NF
+—AZ+RBE)AR-ZZE—NEAA=+AZ
HEAS7TEEEATL - WALE Y LI RIETF
REE-_T—NE+_A=+—RAIBEFE
ZEBEESEAAZSYBRE - AEIMTE
7% 540,000 T REZE T —NF+=A
Zt+—HUEFEZEESEBSRRER -

HAZE—NE+ A=+ HHERKER
HEAR AEAREREHERBEZYE - W
ERRERTFED R A11,623,000 T (=ZF
— =14 : 13,861,000/ 70) & 1,367,000/8 7t (=
TZF T

AREN LM RBFRAR_F-HNF+=A
St BRZF-Z=FtZA=t+—BME@E
FEFAYIR - BB k&R - WRA T HEE SR
H:

Group

K&
2014 2013
—E-F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TFHT

Medium term leases FHEIEE

Hong Kong BF - 4,818
China s 52,723 55,852
52,723 60,670

At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings and construction in progress with an
aggregate net carrying amount of HK$165,464,000 (2013:
HK$142,788,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 25).

REKEZRAERAT F5H2014

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—8 AEEETHE
T REEFREREIRLAEB FES
165,464,000 70 ( —ZF — = : 142,788,000/
TT)EER - UERAEEERN —RRITHE
(Ff5E25) °
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15.

104

—F-mE+-A=+—A

Property, Plant and Equipment continuved)  14. Y% - BERRE (&)
Certain of the Group’s building structures situated in REEGETURTEANMORZEY S EIRE
Mainland China with an aggregate net carrying amount of F {8 #491,420,000 % 7T (ZF — =4 : 2,315,000
approximately HK$1,420,000 (2013: HK$2,315,000) do B WEEEMEETE  REABBEEEDE
not have building ownership certificates because they RS BN A+ AEES IR - SR A
were either built on land where the Group did not have the PE EE R A ES R R TR ARSI A
land use right certificates or being built without obtaining SETRBIAIE AEBEEEBRERAZ LT
the construction works planning permit and construction R E FREEY  AAREBEWEEEENXE
works commencement permit. The Group continued to FamM AEEEEER 2 AMFTREMEA - K
occupy and use the land and building structures SETR-_Z—NFLtAREEPEHE L+ E
constructed thereon as the Group did not receive formal IRBITHEITE K - WiER - ()P EE - &R
removal notice, which management of the Group BAERMEER  WAREB A BEFRZSES
considered as an implied consent to use. The Group has BEYSREREE T —RAF+=-A=+—80:
also conducted face-to-face interviews with the relevant K (i) 7 &= B 30 4% K S = gt 6 B A SR W 4 ST R sk
PRC bureaus of land and resources in July 2014 and Bn BEERA BRABNHFARZ—RF
confirmed that (i) the relevant PRC bureaus of land and Jr* A=+ —HAMAKEE RS T RAZTE
resources were fully aware of the situation and the Group EYIMRBEIK -
can continue to use these building structures at least up to
31 December 2015; and (i) the Group had not and will not
be imposed of fines or being penalised in relation to these
structures. In the opinion of the directors, the risk of the
relevant government authorities imposing a fine on the
Group or confiscating the building structures before 31
December 2015 is relatively low.
Prepaid Land Lease Payments 15. FE{T L HEERE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—HBMERAE 6,779 6,846
Recognised during the year (note 6) FADHER (MzE6) (265) (266)
Exchange realignment ERRECE (165) 199
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HBMEEE 6,349 6,779
Current portion included in prepayments, 5t AFE{I3RIE - &4 REM
deposits and other receivables FEM IR R RN EREE (263) (270)
Non-current portion JERNEREL 6,086 6,509

The Group’s parcels of leasehold land are situated in
Mainland China, are held under medium term leases, and
are pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 25).

REBNHEE IR SR TEAM - XRE
THEERSE  URE RERASEERN R
RITRVE MR (MI5E25) -
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16. Deposits for Purchases of Items of 16.

17.

Property, Plant and Equipment

BEYX BERRERENES

Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ih=s FHET FHT
Carrying amount at 1 January K—HA—HBMERAE 9,331 6,351
Additions NE 6,719 4,456
Transfer to property, plant and BREZYE  WE 14
equipment By (5,369) (1,706)
Write-off I 58 6 (1,913) -
Exchange realignment ERRECE (226) 230
Carrying amount at 31 December ®w+=-—HA=+—H
EY AR (B 8,542 9,331

The carrying amount represented deposits paid for certain
machinery and equipment for the Group’s manufacturing
operation.

Investment in a Subsidiary 17.

RHEERBES TSI RE(HAEELE
BEZRNENERE -

R—ENBLARZRE

Company
AN
2014
—E-mEF
HK$°000
FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT - T ASIER 1

The amount due from and the amount due to a subsidiary
included in current assets and current liabilities of
HK$279,000 and HK$23,197,000, respectively, are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

TARBEER R G E 2 B & BN — M
B AFIFIED B 279,000 7T I 23,197,000 7 7T
AEER - R B R EE T B

REEEERAERAT F#H2014 105



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R R BT

31 December 2014

17. Investment in a Subsidiary (continueq)
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17. R—RBMBLARIZBRE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FTEWBABFBELOT ¢
Issued
Place of incorporation/ ordinary share  Percentage of equity
registration and capital/paid-up attributable to the
Company name business registered capital Company Principal activities
AL/ BRTEERA/ L
NCES REBHLE BREMBRE FAAEERERIL  TEXRE
Direct Indirect
B B
Yan Tat Group Limited * British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
Yan Tat Group Limited * REERREE/BE 10057 RAEER
Yan Tat (HK) Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Trading of printed
circuit boards
BE(BB)EEXBRAT 0 5,000,000 7T EEERIERR
Yan Tat Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Trading of printed
circuit boards
BEMBARAT BB 1,000,000 7 EEHRISHER
Yan Tat Printed Circuits PRC/ RMB110,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing of printed
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. "#* Mainland China circuit boards
BEER(RINBRAA hE/RER AR 110,000,0007C SUEEIRIE R
Grace Yan Tat Electronics PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. “#* Mainland China
RREEF ORI BERAA hE /BN, ARH1,000,0007 BENE
Yan Tat Printed Circuit Technology PRC/ 1US$8,000,000 - 100 Inactive
(Nantong) Co., Ltd. “#* Mainland China
BEEEMR(BR)BERAF " B/ HEA 8,000,000% 7 BEER
Yan Tat Environmental Technology PRC/ RMB43,100,000 - 100  Property holding for
(Nantong) Co., Ltd. *#* Mainland China self-use
HRBERRYHARAT E/RER, AR 43,100,007 BEERANE
Yan Tat Electronics (Shenzhen) PRC/ RMB24,000,000 - 100  Deregistered on
Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China 4 August 2014
BEET (R BRAAY TE /R AR 24,000,000 7T R=F-mE\ARA
BUAFH
High Creation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Deregistered
on 5 September
N 2014
RRERAE e 10,000/&7T R-Z-MEAARR
EURE M
Notes: W&

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law.

# The English names of these companies represent the best effort
made by management of the Company to directly translate their
Chinese names as they did not register any official English names.
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18. Available- for-Sale Investment 18. AIHHERE

Group
REH
2014 2013
—E—F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT FHET
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value BAFEIENIELETRARE 1,350 1,173

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investment recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$207,000 (2013:
HK$21,000).

The above investment represented investment in an
unlisted equity security which has no fixed maturity date or
coupon rate.

At 31 December 2014, the loan to an investee amounting
to HK$2,248,000 (2013: HK$2,306,000) included in the
Group’s non-current assets represented shareholder’s
advance to the available-for-sale investment entity which is
unsecured, interest-free and not repayable within one year
from the end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the
directors, this loan is considered as part of the Group’s
investment in the available-for-sale investment entity.

FR - REMEERGEHEAEBEEHEERER
R A E207,0008 (2 E — =
21,000%7T) °

PR ERKREELTRAESFZRE  ZEK
AEFWEEEDHALES

R-ZE—NE+=—A=+—8 AEEFERHE
ERFANBRTFTREHRER ©8 A
2,248,000 L (ZF— =4 : 2,306,000/8T)
HERRAAEDERETENDN  HAEKR
- Rt ERBERREBRBT —FREE -
EEZRA  ZERERARNEEHAHIERE

BRANMORE -

19. Inventories 19. &

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E-NE =4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Raw materials Rt 19,545 24,944
Work in progress RS 11,596 12,262
Finished goods D4 20,617 22,924
51,758 60,130
BRESBEREBRAR F82014 107
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Trade and Bills Receivables 20. ESRWREREWRER

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E-{EF T =%
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHIT
Trade receivables B 5 REWRIA 196,204 190,352
Impairment A (6,100) (7,669)
190,104 182,683
Bills receivable eI ERE 11,419 21,837
201,523 204,520
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly AEBBEARPHORSEREZREEE @ HEH
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in BEPEBEBTRRBRIN  REBS#HFATEER
advance may be required. The Group maintains a defined ﬁﬁ BERAREPREEBEZEAEHE A ARRERT—
credit policy and credit periods are usually granted ranging —{AAMEER- $$lﬁ%§ﬁﬂ§i§ﬁ§”&%ﬁ
from one to three months from the month-end of date of IE”E%JE BEYE - LUEEREEERR - S RE

invoice to customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date
and net of provisions, is as follows:

B E T NE LAY AEELERRE S
BATAEARR S ERRRY - BB
BB AT A -

R|ERR - EHRIALRBREEREER
BRI B B RORED I E T

Group

REE
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
Within one month —@AAR 77,431 93,003
One to two months —ZE=m1EA 54,609 47,592
Two to three months 2={@AH 52,629 41,308
Over three months BE=1EA 16,854 22,617
201,523 204,520

YAN TAT GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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20. Trade and Bills Receivables (continued) 20. EZREWREREVRERE®)
The movements in provision for impairment of trade and 2 5 MW IE R ERE IR R EREE &

bills receivables are as follows: RN

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E—F —ET-=F
HK$’000 HK$ OOO
At 1 January n—H—H 7,669 8,255
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) EHRBERBE (fe) - 259
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B # B r) R EEE (H:E6) (1,484) @
Amount written off as uncollectible i 8H A A Uk B FOR - (806)
Exchange realignment ME 54, 58 B (85) (37)
At end of year ER 6,100 7,669
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade LA EEE ZERIERERERRERE

and bills receivables of the Group was a provision for
individually impaired trade receivables of HK$6,100,000
(2013: HK$7,669,000) with a carrying amount before
provision of HK$6,192,000 (2013: HK$11,245,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in default in payments or in financial
difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are
past due but not individually nor collectively considered to
be impaired is as follows:

F o BEFAEREREE S REGIENEE - A
6,100,000/ 7T (—ZT— =4 : 7,669,000/ 7T)
B AT BRI (B 46,192,000 T (— T — =4 :
11,245,000 7T) °

18 51 2 IR (8 9 B 55 8 W 3k TR B 36 R 5 SRk B
MHRRENETFER  AHES 50 EER
A U -

EEHEL R ERNREERIERENE 5 R
AN EREENRE DI

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Less than one month past due w1 AR D —1E A 16,512 13,254
One to three months past due wmH—=={@ A 5,028 10,442
Over three months past due i1 HR R A = & A 342 3,611
21,882 27,307

RESEZERAERQT F3R2014 109
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21.
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Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31
December 2013 was an amount due from Parason
Industries Limited (“Parason”), a then related company as
detailed in note 36(f), of HK$21,661,000, which was
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the
major customers of the Group.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables

20.

21.

EZRUWAREAREWRRE &)
REBBTARENEEHBREZEZTIRAEFE
B WEFIIHIN R AR o

BABERRENERRERS 2 BT EFE
B S EARES R AR o R
B ANAEERABERLSEBEHPAER
B RARHHELREALD  MASHEHRD
BRI 2 BRI -

N_ZE—=F+_A=1+—H AEEANESRE
WHBEBRERKEMREEERARI(TER] - &
B — M AR - FIB RN RE - &
%8 /521,661,000 7 - BIRAEBE X EZRFAT
BERHBLUEEGRRERS -

ANRE REREMERRE

Group Company

rE b NN

2014 2013 2014

—E—mF ZE—=F —ZE—mF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT THET

Prepayments FEfIFRIE 10,747 11,604 840
Deposits and other receivables %4 & E b E U 08 5,857 10,544 -
16,604 22,148 840

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

bBEEHRBESNIRNE - LllESAERYBE
BB R R )R SR R IGRIR B A -
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22. Cash and Cash Equivalents and 22, REeRBREEEYRCERERRZR

Pledged Deposits and Restricted Cash

HRE

Group Company
by 3 | b N
2014 2013 2014
—E-mE  —E-=f E-0OF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BisE TET THET TER
Cash and bank balances Be KRITHES 154,137 45,060 68,325
Pledged deposits and restricted cash BEAERRERERS 21,880 17,957 -
176,017 63,017 68,325
Less: i
Pledged time deposits for RITHE  BARIREH 25
banking facilities 7%
— with original maturity of less than — R REI B
three months when acquired PR=1EA (16,954) (11,302) -
— with original maturity of more — WBRRIEA
than three months BB=@EA
when acquired (3,747) - -
Pledged deposits for bills payable WERNFEISMAIR=MA 23
with original maturity of less than ZERRE B ERER
three months when acquired (1,179) (4,705) -
Restricted cash ZREF L - (1,950) -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHEEEY 154,137 45,060 68,325

At 31 December 2014, the cash and bank balances and
pledged deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) amounted to HK$30,438,000 (20183:
HK$23,349,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates, except for the pledged deposit
with original maturity of more than three months when
acquired which earns interest at 3.08% per annum. The
bank balances, pledged deposits and restricted cash are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and bank
balances, pledged deposits and restricted cash
approximate to their fair values.

R-ZZE—NE+-A=+—H  AEBRARE
(TAREDENR: RIBITEBREEFT
430,438,000 T (Z T — =4 : 23,349,000
BIL) c ARETSEmERAHEMER - IR
AR Bt 2 INE B IR G A SR AEBE - B IE I A
BERIAT  AEBCEETEBEZEETIN
EEBRITBARBHBRAEEME -

RITRSIZE A RITERM EFRIUZ B F X F
B HESERIMASNR=EA 22 EREFR
BRON - EH123.08% 2 FFI K EREAE - SRITA
# BEERERRZRHIRSCFEREERTR
I AT HIE AORCERHVERTT - M MIRTTHEER - B
BERERRXREBSOEEERE QX FER
=,
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22. Cash and Cash Equivalents and 22, REeRBREEEYRCERERRZR
Pledged Deposits and Restricted Cash FIRE (#)
(continued)
Restricted cash of the Group was a special fund granted AEBMZEREESETFEBRNEREAEE
by a PRC government authority and deposited into a BERISKERREMBELOERES - EENE
designated bank account in relation to the Group’s ERITFPO - FHEESEHEEZE_T—HF+=
construction of a sewage treatment facility. This fund was RZ=+—B I FEERCE T MR REER -
released for use during the year ended 31 December 2014
upon the fulfilment of certain attaching conditions.
23. Trade and Bills Payables 23. EFEARERESE
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—Z2-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Trade payables 2 SR 124,185 103,174
Bills payable Rt 4,642 14,866
128,827 118,040

112

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

RIERR  EHRNRBELRENRERIEER

HERBRER DT DI ST -

Group

REH
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Within three months =EARAA 104,013 96,458
Three to six months =ZE=XEA 23,205 19,968
Over six months HBiEs<E A 1,609 1,614
128,827 118,040

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled within three months from the
month-end of date of invoice.

At 31 December 2014, bills payable with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$3,185,000 (2013: HK$12,682,000)
were secured by pledged deposits of HK$1,179,000
(2013: HK$4,705,000).

B RNFBR/EER T BERERA

H AR =E A N -

MN-Z—NME+-FA=+—8 FEEALES
3,185,000/ 7L (ZF— =4 : 12,682,000 Jt)
MEMNZHEEH1,179,0008 T (—Z T — =4 :
4,705,00078 70 ) B E IR IFF FUELR ©
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24. Other Payables and Accruals

24, HttENREREER

Group Company
wE ¥ /NS
2014 2013 2014
—E—NF —E—=F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT FHET
Current ENHA

Sundry payables e S 5,454 4,099 13
Accruals fEFTE A 45,860 34,426 2,158
51,314 38,525 2,171

Non-current JEBNER
Deferred income” FEIEUT A 3,772 3,868 -

The sundry payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

A Deferred income represents fund granted by a PRC government
authority in relation to the Group’s construction of a sewage
treatment facility. This deferred income will be released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant sewage treatment facility by equal instalments upon the
transfer of the facility to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when the construction is completed and ready to
use.

ENAMETTE - FHPRA=MEA -

A R A BIBUR & B3t A 5 B M2 )5 K iR 12 R 6 1%
HEES - B BEERAM R RN ST R A A
HBEEAME  BEREFEENER  REFRISKE
BRI A ERFRRE D D MRABER -

REKEZRAERAT F5H2014
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25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 25. FFEMRITHEX
2014 2013
“E-mE —T-=%
Effective/ Effective/
contractual contractual
interest interest
Group rate (p.a) Maturity? HK$'000 rate (p.a,) Maturity? HK$'000
R£E BB/ ANERE H%A2 THEn  BR/ANERE =g TERL
Current 08
Secured trust receipt ER—ENERY LIBOR' + 1.75% 2015 34,002 LIBOR' +2% 2014 37,791
loans due for repayment BRAEIWEST t0 2%, 10 2.25%,
within one year’ or HIBOR + or HBOR* +
1.75% t0 2% 1.75% t0 2.25%
LBOR'+1.75% £2% —Z—H1F LBOR'+ 2% £2.25% —Z—F
% HIBOR*+1.75% % HIBOR*+1.75%
2£2% £2.25%
Secured bank loans ER—ENEEY HIBOR“+2%, or 2015 4000 HSBCBLR?- 1.5%, 2014 6,240
due for repayment BERRITER PRIMES -2.25% HIBOR: + 2.25%,
within one year which (BBREXERER) PRIME? - 2.25%
contain repayment on 10.3.1%, or 3%
demand clauses’
HBOR42%%, —E-1fF HSBOBLR-15%  —Z-MF
PRIME?-2.25% HIBOR' + 2.25% *
PRIME® -2.25% %
31%%3%
Secured bank loans BR—FRERD HIBOR“+2% or  2016-2019 15,000 HSBCBLR®-1.5%,  2015-2043 16,238
dlue for repayment BERBIER PRIME?-2.25% HIBOR: + 2.25%,
after one year which (BBREXEREDR) PRIMES - 2.25%
contain repayment 103.1%, or 3%
on demand clauses’
HBOR4+2%% —Z—~&E% HSBCBLR*-15% —Z—hfZ
PRMES-2.25% —E-h% HBOR!+225%  —EM=F
PRIME® -2.25% £
31%53%
Secured bank loans due for ~ BR—EREBH 5.32%-5.6% 2015 31,223 6% 2014 19,211
repayment withinone year® A F{TE e
532%56% —5-1F 6% —F-IF
Current portion of secured AR —FAEER 3-t0-5 year PBC 2015 15,859 3-to-5-year PBC 2014 6,742
bank loans due for BERRITER BLR? with 15% BLR® with 15%
repayment after one year® SN He mark-up, over-5- mark-up, over-5-
year PBC BLR?, year PBC BLR?,
or6.7% or6.7%
3Z5FAPRCBIRE  —T-TF 3E5FAPBCBIR  —T-MF
M15% - BB5F M15% - BB5F
APBC BLR2,6.7% /PBC BLR2,6.7%
100,174 86,222
114 YAN TAT GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 25. STRBITHERE)
(continued)
2014 2013
“E2-mE —T-=f%
Effective/ Effective/
contractual contractual
interest interest
Group rate (p.a.) Maturity? HK$'000 rate (p.a) Maturity? HK$'000
T&E BB/ GNERNZR HH#A? TR ER/BNERE 5ER? TER
Non-current FENH
Secured bank loans due for B —E&EEH 3-to-5-year PBC  2016- 2020 54,435 3o-5-year PBC  2015-2020 40,023
repayment after one yeart BHEMBTERS BLR® with 15% BLR® with 15%
mark-up, over-5- mark-up, over-5-
year PBC BLR?, year PBC BLR?,
0r6.7% or6.7%

3E5FAPBCBLRY —E—1F

ms% #@sER ZFCF
PBC BLR°%6.7%

Total @t

! London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)

2 Based on the scheduled repayment dates as set out in the loan
agreement

8 The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation best lending rate
(“HSBC BLR”)

4 Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)

5 Standard Chartered Bank Prime Rate (“‘PRIME”)

6 People’s Bank of China benchmark lending rate (“PBC BLR”)

7 Denominated in HK$ or US$

8 Denominated in RMB

Certain of the Group’s bank loan agreements contain
repayment on demand clauses and the corresponding
bank loans have been classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Ignoring the
effect of any repayment on demand clauses and based on
the maturity terms of these loans, the interest-bearing
bank borrowings of the Group are repayable:

ES

£

3E5EAPBCBLR —Z-REZR
Mm% #@sEs —E-%F
PBC BLR®2(6.7%

154,609 126,245

! fRBERTT RIS E ([LIBORJ)
2 HERERBHARBTEREH

8 ERELBESRITERAAKEEEEF X ([HSBC

BLR])
‘ EBRITRZEFE (THBORI)
B BT RITHREEF = ([PRIME])

6 B ARIRITEEFZETFIZ ([PBC BLRI)
7 AT ETTIIE
¢ AAREIE

REBETRITERBARBRERERGER
MARRITERCEREEMBIRARDBRR
BRE - WA REMRERERGRRZZER
REBEZFEFOEHHR - ARE 25 BR1TE
RBIRTREE
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25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings

25. FTESBRITER®E)

(continued)
Group
REH
2014 2013
—ZE-WF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Within one year —FR 85,174 69,984
In the second year E_F 36,683 12,542
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEFRLFT (BEEREWT) 31,649 35,329
Beyond five years HF®% 1,103 8,390
154,609 126,245
Notes: B 5 -
(@) Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by: (a) ETAREBERITEDRTIA T MRS BEER
i) the Group’s leasehold land and buildings and construction i) FEEHET M REFRERTRR RIS
in progress with an aggregate carrying value at the end of HA 2K 9 BR T 4218 /5 165,464,000 T (= F
the reporting period of HK$165,464,000 (2013: — =4 : 142,788,0008 7T ) (MtzE 14)
HK$142,788,000) (note 14);
(ii) the Group’s parcels of leasehold land situated in Mainland (ii) AEENFEAMHEE R - EOBEATE
China which are classified as prepaid land lease payments TR EFIE (MEE15) + &
(note 15); and
(il pledged deposits with banks amounting to HK$20,701,000 (iil B T IR1TAF 304 20,701,000 7 7L (=
(2013: HK$11,302,000) (note 22). T—=4F : 11,302,000 70 ) (M3 22) °
(0) At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s bank borrowings (b) R_ZE—=F+_A=+—H8 BFTEKE2RTT
were also secured by: ERINEHA T S BEEL A -
0] fixed deposit of not less than HK$3,700,000 from a director [0) APRB —RBEENTHERTLR
of the Company; 3,700,000 7T
(i certain leasehold land and buildings of a related company (i) AARETESHE —MBABARNETHA
owned by certain directors of the Company; and S+ REF K
(il certain leasehold land and buildings of a director of the (iil ANR—REENETHELHREF -
Company.
All the above securities were released during the year ended 31 FHpEREEREE S NF+-_A=+—H
December 2014. I\EFERRRR o
() At 31 December 2013, certain of the bank borrowings were also () RZZE—=F+=ZA=1+—8  BFRITEHKITH
guaranteed by certain directors of the Company. These guarantees RABETERER - LllEFRHEOZFERE
provided by the directors were released during the year ended 31 REBE-T—NF+-A=1+—BLLFEHRK -
December 2014.
() At 31 December 2013, the Government of the Hong Kong Special @ RZZ—=F+ZA=+—0  BHEFINITHREK
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Administrative Region had provided special guarantees for certain
banking facilities of the Group up to an aggregate guarantee
amounts of HK$7,900,000. Furthermore, the Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited, a limited company wholly-owned by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, had
also provided a special guarantee for a banking facility of the Group
up to a guarantee amount of HK$8,600,000 as at 31 December
2013. These guarantees were released during the year ended 31
December 2014.

YAN TAT GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014

MAREEE THRITBMERMERIER  BREE
£ % /7,900,000 7 © LN - & R BITT B &
RN2ERBENBRAREBIZBEFERAANE
BAKE -BRITHEREEIER  RZT—=
F+ZA=+—HBIERERZ 58,600,000 T °
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25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 25. STRBITHERE)

(continued)

Notes: B -

(e) Included in the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2014, were © RZZ—NOF+-A=+—8  RITEXLEEDED
borrowings with carrying amounts of HK$101,517,000 (2013: 7l /101,617,000 7T ( =& — =4 : 65,976,000 7T
HK$65,976,000) and HK$30,535,000 (2013: HK$21,016,000) 30,685,000 7. ( =2 — = 4F : 21,016,000 7T) £
which were denominated in RMB and the United States dollars BRDAAARB RET(TETDEE) - FrEHM
(“US$”), respectively. All other bank borrowings were denominated SRITIERI LB TTEHE -
in HKS.

(f) At 31 December 2014, interest rates of the bank borrowings were 4] RZT—NOF+ZA=+—08 ' RITEFIRETSHFE
either fixed or floating and determined with reference to rates such PR B - FRTIBESEE MBIRITRERS - FE
as Hong Kong/London Interbank Offered Rate, People’s Bank of ARBITEEBENERRITRES HREERFXRS
China benchmark lending rates and prime/best lending rates of FEEEE - AEBRITERDFENFHF1.98%
banks. The interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings ranged £7.36% (ZF—=%F : 2.00% % 7.36%) °
from 1.98% to 7.36%, (2013: from 2.00% to 7.36%) per annum.

Finance Lease Payables 26. RIEHERMNRIE

The Group leases certain of their motor vehicles and ANEBREE T /= MR N ERE - UWHEEY

machinery and equipment for its operations. These leases A-#%SHENEARERE  HKTHANTL

are classified as finance leases and have remaining lease BAERE -FTERENENBETEREE B

terms ranging from seven months to five years. All leases A gk s AT B R RRT S AR & Bk

are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have

been entered into for contingent rental payments.

At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease RZE—NF+_A=1+—H pEHEETX

payments under finance leases and their present values REERSNREERERAESHOT

were as follows:

Present value
Minimum of minimum
Group lease payments lease payments
r5E REHENK REHENRRE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE = E-@mF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THER FAL
Amounts payable: R
Within one year —FR 2,417 3,682 2,349 3,525
In the second year £ 350 2,066 319 2,039
In the third to fifth years, inclusive ~ £=EZERE
(BEERME) 875 - 84 -

Total minimum finance lease payments H{XFIEFHE N 425 3,642 5,748 3,509 5,564

Future finance charges ARBEER (133) (184)

Total net finance lease payables BEMERNIBEFELESR 3,509 5,564

Portion classified as current liabiliies 2 ¥8 AE1HI & ERIEEH (2,349) (3,525)

Non-current portion JERNEREE > 1,160 2,039
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27. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during

the year are as follows:

27. EEFIE
BELHBEEREEREANESHNT :

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE
Group &M
Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of related
depreciation
FEREEB
HEANE
HK$’000
T
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H (256)
Deferred tax credited to profit RERFTAEBRR
or loss during the year (note 10) IRIEFRIE (FEE10) 1
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+"H=+—H
1 January 2014 EZZT—NF—H—H (259)
Deferred tax credited to profit or RERGTAERD
loss during the year (note 10) EIEREIE (FE10) 199
At 31 December 2014 RZE—WHF+=—A=+—H (56)
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Deferred Tax (continued) 27. EEBEE)

Deferred tax assets EEHBEEE
Group rEE

Losses
available for
Depreciation offsetfing
Provision  inexcess Provision for against Other
for accrued of related  inventories future  geductible
staff welfare depreciation  and trade taxable  temporary
costs  allowance receivables profits  differences Total
A8
RFBIEN FERBEH HFERES ARERR  Httawine
RAEE WERE BUFERE BIZER BRHEZE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR THER THER
At1 January 2013 R-Z—=F—Hf—H 2,275 2,463 2,408 - 280 7,421
Deferred tax credited/(charged) A ERREZ A/ (1)

to profit or loss during the year gy i 5 78 (Kt 10)

(note 10) 244 812 - - - (568)
Exchange realignment i 7 AR 7 60 72 - 8 211
At 31 December 2013 and RZZ-—=F+-F=1+—H

1 January 2014 RZZ-—NF-A-AH 2,590 1,711 2,475 - 288 7,064
Deferred tax credited/(charged) AERMBREET A/ (1K)

to profit or loss during the year  BIEERIE (i3 10)

(note 10) (111) (236) (212) 1,557 282 1,280
Exchange realignment X% (63) (40) (62) - ® (179)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME+-A=1+—H 2,416 1,435 2,201 1,557 562 8,171
Net deferred tax assets of the Group have not been AEEWEFATIEE BRIEEHRIAEETE !
recognised in respect of the following items:

Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFHT
Tax losses THIEEE - 12,142
Taxable temporary differences JERT R Z £ - (237)
- 11,905
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Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets of approximately HK$1,557,000 were
recognised by the Group as at 31 December 2014 in
respect of tax losses of a subsidiary of the Group arising in
Hong Kong of HK$9,438,000 on the expected future
taxable profit streams for the year ended 31 December
2014. At 31 December 2013, the Group had tax losses of
HK$12,142,000 arising in Hong Kong that were available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of a
subsidiary of the Group in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets had not been recognised as at 31
December 2013 as it was then not considered probable
that taxable profits would be available against which the
tax losses could be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of a subsidiary of the Group established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that this subsidiary will distribute earnings arising
from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2014 in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the investment in the
subsidiary in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$149.2 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$114.8 million).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

27.

IEAEBLIE ()

NZZE—NFE+-_A=+—H  AEEACHERE
R IEEEHXI1,557,0008 7T W R AER—H
WMBRARANEAREE_T—NE+-_/A=+—
AL FEEE 2 BHERRERBOEFRmELE
ZHMIEEE £% /594380008 T R-Z
—=F+-A=1+—8 AEEERREBZM
TE E51812,142,0008 7T + A (4K S 2N & B 2 Y
BAR(BIERZARES) 2 RRERFUEH -
RZE—Z=ZF+-A=+—0  AEBTEER
EERIEEE  RAERATI A ERFER
I B3 RZ A TE RS IR o

RIBPBECEMEEE - NP BEARMRZ NS
KREGERBIREET KRS E - AR
10%FEHIH - MER —TZTN\F—A—HEL
B WERAR—ETLF+_A=1t—HENR
M o fii R B A BB IMR B B B DA R AT A1
B - B AR BEMN IR R - @ARA
SEMBREDL% - Filt - ZERHEAMKT
MBRRAR —EZNF-A-—HRELNA
MDA SRS - AEBABMIAH -

RS IR - BEASSE B AR B Rtk 2 R BT 8 A
IR RIE AR (BRMNTEINR) ARMNNTE
MEms  MEREERETCHE - 2R A
ZHBRARIRARRETKALEDRR T
NF—A—BE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HE
ENBEF - RZE—NF+-_A=+—8  RNZ
FERMKNBARZIRESB BN =24
(WARELERIEAE) D RIA HAE14028
EBT(ZE—=F - 114888ET) °

AR BAEBRRIR I S BB PSR R o
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28. Share Capital 28. 7
Company b N/NE|
Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value of
of HK$0.01 each  ordinary shares
BR0.01ET
ZEREE LZEREE
Notes HK$’000
By &E FHET
Authorised ETE (a) 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
On incorporation on 8 July 2014 RZZE—mMFE+AN\H
Eailiava (b) 1 -
Increase in issued share capital on RZZE—MNE+AN\E
8 July 2014 BB BT AR A AN (© 99 -
Capitalisation issue of shares B BTG (@) 179,999,900 1,800
Issue of new shares on NZZE—OF
8 December 2014 += AN\BEITHK () 60,000,000 600
240,000,000 2,400

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 8 July 2014. There was no
authorised and issued capital as at 31 December 2013
since the Company had not yet been incorporated.

ARBIRZZE—MNFLANRAEHRSHS M
MY ABRAR - MR- E—=F+-_A=+—
B BEETEREETRA  BARARIMAT
fBakz -
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28.

122

Share Capital (continued) 28. WA (&)
During the year, the movements in the Company’s share FAN - ARBZRASEHIT -

capital are as follows:

(@ On incorporation of the Company on 8 July 2014, (@)
the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$100,000,000 dividend into 10,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each.

(b)  Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 8 July (b)
2014, 1 ordinary share of HK$0.01 was allotted and
issued at par to the Company’s initial subscriber and
fully paid, and was subsequently transferred to
Million Pearl Holdings Ltd..

(c) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 8 July (©
2014, a total of 99 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were allotted and issued at par to Million Pearl
Holdings Ltd. and fully paid.

(d) Pursuant to a resolution passed on 3 December (d)
2014, 179,999,900 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were allotted and issued, credited as fully paid
at par, by way of capitalisation from the share
premium account to Million Pearl Holdings Ltd.
immediately before the listing of the Company’s
shares in the Stock Exchange on 8 December 2014.
This allotment and capitalisation issue were
conditional on the share premium account being
credited as a result of the issue of new shares to the
public in connection with the Company’s initial public
offering as detailed in note (e) below.

(e) In connection with the Company’s initial public (e
offering, 60,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued at a price of HK$1.23 per share
for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$73,800,000. Dealings in the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange commenced on 8
December 2014,

YAN TAT GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2014

RARR_ETE—WMNF+ANBEMKL
B - A A) 2 0% E B 7R 100,000,000 7
7T * 4 #10,000,000,000 P& & A% & {& 0.01
EILH R

BEZZ—NF+tA\BBBNEERE
2 1REREEICOIEITHNTBREIZ
HEEERBETTARAVIREARE
& 2 - H 1% ¥ 2 T Milion Pearl Holdings
Ltd.

BEZT—MF+ AN\ BBBAMNEBERZE
X AHOEEREMBEOIE T L E
% B &% E A % & % 17 T Milion Pearl
Holdings Ltd. X E &2 °

BE-E—ME+ - A=ZHBBHEER
HEBEARIROARZZT-—EF+=
ANBEBZR EmA - ERE RO &EE
RE R+ 179,999,900 ik & A%
B0.01 BT EBER (AR AZERR)
2 % ® E B % K& % 17 T Million Pearl
Holdings Ltd. ° #Z Bl 2% & & AL B 1T BFF
RABIERAFRES (R T () FFi)
A A REATIAR 0 18 I (9 V6 (B BRI BR
% AEE -

RARBDERNAREENS  CRER
1.2378 7T B {8 1% 3 7760,000,000 f& & A%
001 B THE B - Me LA EGIBRA
2 Bl1) /73,800,000 7T ° AN &) HY A% 15
R-T—ME+ - AN\BEBRBEZRE

=
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29. Share Option Scheme 29. BRESE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. The Scheme became
effective on 18 November 2014 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for ten years
from that date.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, is required to be approved by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within the date as specified in the offer letter issued by the
Company, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of any
option granted under the Scheme is determined by the
board of directors in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten years after it has
been granted.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of directors at its absolute discretion, but may not
be less than the higher of (i) closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average of
the closing prices of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (i) the nominal value of the shares on the date of
grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Further details of the Company’s share option scheme are
set out in the Group’s Report of the Directors.

No share options were granted during the year ended 31
December 2014 and no share options were outstanding
under the Scheme as at 31 December 2014 and 20183.

REKEZRAERAT F5H2014

A ARSI AR 8 (33t 8))) U s A 2%
B SR R B R A A 4R 2 L 4R L2 R %
B BEHER-T-mET—ATABER - B
SER AT - Al h % BB
B -

MARRES - (THRAHSEZRE - SEAE
E7BB AR EMNEREEESEZIENR
TEEME - FREE o A REMA121E
AEE - MARRFEERENBY IFRTES -
RAEMBEESE 2B E AT L85 E
RIBAR R M EETRMNA01% @ skig
BRBEARABROREFEHBHOKNE) BB
5,000,000 8 TR IR R RS ESRFRNE L4
A FAEE -

W BOTaEEARKAR T Y
BOWILFTSIEE . A PERS N 1 AT A%
(AR - AR ISt BIT 0 FE IR AR AR 07T 02
BRESRHEEE  BARSHRER ST L
TR -

BREZTEEHNEFEHRETE - BTEER
TAREE